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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of ART Housing
Finance (India) Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 3Lst March
2027, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and
notes to the Ind AS financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013
("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the India
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2075, as amended, ("Ind As") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021., the
Profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with th_e Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAD together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

1. Attention is drawn to Note No. 4 and 5, wherein, during the previous financial year, a FIR
was registered by Central Bureau of Investigation (CBI), on 7th March 2020 against the
promoters and Group Companies. On the Basis of the aforesaid FIR, Enforcement
Directorate (ED) also filed an ECIR dated 7th March 2020 and was carrying out
investigations in this regard. Further, during the year under review, Provisional
Attachment Orders were issued by ED, attaching the bank accounts and fixed deposits of
the Company having a balance of Rs. 5263.59 Lacs. The Company had, subsequently, filed a

petition in Honorable Delhi High Court for release of these funds. Accordingly, the
Honourable Delhi High Court vide order dated 10th Iune 2020 gave liberty to the Company
to operate its bank accounts mentioned in the impunged provisional attachment order
subject to the amount attached by the ED.
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2. Further, vide another order of the Honourable Delhi High Court, dated 25ft September
2020, an amount of Rs 4285.33 Lacs was released by the bank, in favour of National
Housing Bank (NHB) towards settlement of loan availed by the Company. As on the close
of the current financial year an amount of Rs. 978.26 Lacs stands attached by the ED.

3. Attention is drawn to Note No. 39 where due to the outbreak of corona virus (COVID-19)
pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of
economic activity. The Company's operations and revenue during the period were
impacted due to COVID-19. The Company has taken into account the possible impact of
COVID-19 in preparation of the Ind AS financial statements, including its assessment of
recoverable value of its assets based on internal and external information upto the date of
approval of these audited Ind AS financial statements and current indicators of future
economic conditions.

4. In continuation to the earlier lockdown announced by the Indian Covernment to prevent
the spread of the virus and subsequent resumption of services in a phased manner,
additional lockdown measures were announced across certain states during the current
financial year. In view of this the entire audit was carried out online based on remote access

of data, as provided by the management, instead of standard conventional Audit. This
resulted in need for carrying out alternative audit procedures as per the Standards on
Auditing prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAD. The Audit
has been carried out based on the advisory on "Specific Considerations while conducting
Distance Audit/ Remote Audit/ Online Audit under current Covid-19 situation" issued by
the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board of ICAI.

We have been represented by the management that the data provided for our audit
purposes is correct, complete, reliable, and are directly generated by the accounting system
of the Company without any further manual modifications. We bring to the attention of the
users that the audit of the financial statements has been performed in the aforesaid
conditions.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Auditor's ResponseKey Audit Matter
Subjective Estimate
1. Recognition and measurement of

impairment relating to loans and
advances to customer involves
significant management judgement.

As per Ind AS 109 credit loss assessment is
now based on Expected Credit toss ffi
Model and applicable to theComp{ySV'

Our Audit procedures included considering the
appropriateness of the Company's accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets and
assessing compliance with Ind AS 109.

o Understood Company's new processes,

\ systems and controls implemented relating

aAXa impairment allowance process including
\6Nv"rr,ance controls over the development

*

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial Statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the following matter to be the Key audit matter to be communicated in our Report.
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and implementation of the ECL model;

Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response
The Impairment Loss provision is
computed based on management
estimates including the historical default
and loss ratios. Management exercises
judgement in determining the quantum of
loss based on range of factors.
The most significant areas involving
significant measures estimates are:

o Loan Staging criteria
o Calculation of probability of

default/loss given default/Exposure at
default

o Consideration of probability weighted
scenarios and forward looking macro-
economic factors.

Ind AS 109 requires an entity to determine
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) amount on a

probability weighted basis. There is a large
increase in the data inputs required for the
computation of ECL. This increases the
risk of completeness and accuracy of the
data that has been used as a basis of
significant assumptions in the model.

o Test checked the design and implementation
of key internal financial controls over loan
impairment process used to calculate the
impairment charge and test checked
management review controls over
measurement of impairment allowances and
disclosures in the financial statements;

o Evaluated appropriateness of the
impairment principles based on the
requirements of Ind AS 109 considering our
business understanding and industry
practice.

. Performed substantive procedures over
validating completeness and accuracy of the
data and reasonableness of assumptions
used in the model;

o We engaged our specialists to test the
working of the ECL model and
reasonableness of assumptions used;

. Broadly evaluated management's judgement
in the determination of ECL;

Peiformed cut off procedures on a sample basis
relating to recoveries at year end that would
impact staging of loans.

Information Other than the Ind AS financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information does not include the financial Statements and our auditor's report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the
financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial Statements
or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Resoonsibilities of the Manasement and those charged with sovernance for the Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act, with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
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of the financial position, financial including other Comprehensive Income,
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changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.
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This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial Statements, Board of Director is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial Statements. As a
part of an audit in accordance with the SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the Audit.

We also:

o Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3Xi) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing an opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

hIUMBAI

accounting estimates and related by management.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are

required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial Statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial Statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user

of the financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and

qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial

Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged

with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the

financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a

matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 20L6 ("the Order"), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the

Companies Act, 201,3, we give in the "Annexrtre 7" a statement on the matters specified

in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 1a3(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by

i,'ll,!tu|BAI

so far as it appears from our examination of those
law have been kept by the Company
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c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of accounts.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind As specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 3Ltt
March, 202L taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is
disqualified as on 31't March, 2021. from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

0 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexute 2". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 2021 has been
paidlprovided by the Company to its directors is in accordance with the provision
of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2074, as amended,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position as at 31st March 2027;

ii. The Company does not have long-term contracts including derivative contracts
requiring provision for material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

FoTSMMP&Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 120438W

Shah
Partner

Membership No. - 766729

UDIN No. 21 166729AAAAIG6653

MUI!!EAI* *
ca

Mumbai, dated 77rh May, 2027
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditors'Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statement

(Referred to Paragraph 1 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section
of our report to the Members of ART Housing Finance (India) Limited of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations given to us and the books and records examined
by us and on the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate, we further report as under:

(i) Fixed Assets

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (Fixed Assets).

b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant
and Equipment, by which all Property, Plant and Equipment are verified annually.
In our opinion the periodicity of such physical verification is reasonable having
regards to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. As explained to us

there were no discrepancies on such verification carried out by the management.

c) The Company does not have any immovable property (in the nature of 'Property,
Plant and Equipment'). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(C) of the order is
not applicable to the Company during the year under review.

(ii) The Company is in the business of rendering services and consequently does not hold
any physical inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the order are not
applicable to the Company during the year under review.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of records
verified by us during the year, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships (LLPs) or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c) of the order are not applicable to the
Company during the year under review.

(iv) Based on the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of records
verified by us, the Company has not granted any loan or provided any security in
connection with any loan taken by the parties covered under Section 185 of the Act. The
Company is registered as a Housing Finance Company with the National Housing Bank.

Therefore, the provisions Section 186 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the order are not applicable to the
Company during the year under review.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits as per the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules
framed there under. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3 (v) of the order are not
applicable to the Company.

3a,
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(vi) The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records
under Section 148(1) of the Act, for any products of the Company. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(vi) of the order are not applicable to the Company during the year
under review.

vii) As per the records verified by us and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, employee State insurance, Goods and Services Tax (GST),
Profession Tax, Customs duty and other material statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities during the year and there were no amounts representing outstanding
balances for more than six months as on the Balance Sheet date.

According to the information and explanation given us and as per the records verified by
us, the Company does not have disputed statutory liability during the year under review
in respect of Goods & Services Tax (GST), Provident Fund, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax,
Service Tax, Cess and other material Statutory dues. In respect of Income Tax the details
of disputed liability is given in the table below:

Name of Statute Nature of
Dues

Amount (Rs.

In Lacs)
Period to which

it relates
Forum where

pending
Income Tax Act,
7967

Income Tax 725.90 2077-78 CIT (Appeals)-l

Income Tax Act,
7967

Income Tax 74.95 2076-77 ITAT

viii) As per the records verified by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans
and borrowings to the banks and financial institutions during the year under review.
The Company has no loans or borrowings payable to government and did not have any
outstanding debentures during the year.

ix) The Company has not raised any money during the year through initial / further public
offer (including debt instruments). In our opinion the terms loans were applied for the
purpose for which the loans were obtained.

x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any
instance of fraud on or by the Company or its officers or employees, noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the management.

xi) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the
managerial remuneration has been paid/provided in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 797 read with Schedule V to the Act.

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi company during the year under review and hence the
provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable.

xiii) As per the information and explanations given during the course of our verification, in
our opinion, all transactions with the related parties made by the Company were in
compliance with Sections 777 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as

lv. .*

required by the applicable accounting standards.
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xiv) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly non-convertible debentures during the year. Hence

provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv) As per the information and explanations provided to us, during the year, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
the directors within the purview of SectionT92 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions of
clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi) As per the information and explanations provided to us and based on the overall
operations of the Company, the Company is not required to obtain registration under
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

FoTSMMP&Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 120438W

Chintan Shah
Partner

Membership No. 766729

UDIN No. 21 166729AAAAJG6653

Mumbai, dated 77th May, 2021
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Auditor's on the Standalone Ind
Statement

(Referred to paragraph 2(0 under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report to the members of ART Housing Finance (India) Limited of even date)

Independent Auditors Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Section 1a3(3Xi) of
the Companies 20't3 "thg Act")(

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ART Housing
Finance (India) Limited ("the Company") as of 31't March, 2027 in conjunction with our audit
of the Standalone Ind AS financial Statements of the Company comprising of the Balance Sheet

as at March 31"t 2027, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Comprehensive Income,

Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash FIow Statement for the period then ended.

Manaqement's Responsibilitv Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance

Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAD. These responsibilities include the design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to

Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets; the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' oonsibilitv:

Our responsibitity is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting and the

Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2073, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those

standards and the Guidance Note that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial

controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an

understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's

1'udgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

MUif.:Al
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Statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Financial Controls over Financial

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those

policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the comPany;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial Statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material

misstatements due to error or fraud may occut and not be detected. Also, projections of any

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject

to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion:

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company has, in
all material respects, established an adequate internal financial controls system over financial

reporting on criteria based on or considering the essential components of internal control stated

in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Such internal financial controls over financial

reporting were operating effectively as at March 31st 2027.

FoTSMMP&Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registra tion No. 120438W

Shah
Partner

Membership No. 1,66729

UDIN N o. 21.1.66729AAAAJG6653

Mumbai, dated, 77th May, 2027
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ART Housing Finance (India) Umited
Balance Sheet as atMatch31o202l
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

The accompanying notes form an integral part ofthese Ind AS Financial Statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report ofeven date
FoTSMMP&Company
Firm Registration Number: 120438W

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors of
ART Housing Finance

VipinJr
Director &
DIN:03456031

M
Chintan Shah

Partner

Membetship No: 166729

Place: N{umbai

Date: May 11,2021

1-3

W
Rahul Kumar Pandey

Chairperson

DIN:00250437

Bharat Dhall
I,lead of Finance

Place: Gurugram

Date: May 11,2021

\ffi,",,
Wholctime Director &

Company Secretary

DIN:08741012

Mem No ACS 24016

Note No. As at
March3l,202l

As at
March31,2020

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Investments

Other financial assets

4

5

6

7

8

2,118.90

1,043.86

40,888.54

112.47

479.21

3,991.31

1,191,.57

50,320.57

2,313.34

528.63
Total financial assets 44,642.98 58,345.42

Non-financial assetg

Current ax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets (net)

Property, plant and equipment

Other intangible assets

Right-of-use assets

Othet non-financial assets

I
I
10

10

10

11

16.71

321.04

325.17

138.29

223.15

166.66

75.45

158.05

594.80

202.78

797.50

788.10
Total non-financiai assets 7,797.62 2,616.68

Total Assets 45,834.60 60,962.10

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial liabilities

Payablcs

Trade payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micto enteqprises and small
enterprises

(ii) total outstanding dues ofcreditols other than nucro
enterprises and smalI enterprises

Borrowings (other than debt securities)

Other financial lirbilities

12

12

13

14

1.37

11.94

3,492.32

422.70

1,9.26

3.63

1 8,800.1 7

1,505.65
Total financial liabilities 3,934.33 20,328.71

Non-fi nancial liabilities
Ptovisions

Other non-fi nancial liabiiities

15

16

(20.67)

132.28

0.76

21't.02
Total non-financial liabilities 71t.61 211.78

EQUITY
Equity share capital

Other equity
17

18

38,500.00

3,288.66

38,500.00

1,921.61
Total equity 41,788.66 40,421.67

Total Liabilities and Equity 45,834.60 60,962.70
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ARI Housing Finance (India) Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 3l,2OZl
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of Significant Policies 1-3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Ind AS Financial Statements

Thie ie the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date
Fot S M M P & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration Number 120438W ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Chartered Accountants

Chintan Shah

Partner

Membership No: 166729

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 77,2021

*^rrW,
Chairperson

DIN:00250437

Jain
Managing Director &

DIN: 03456031

Ritika Sati

Wholetime Director &
Company Secretary

DIN: 08741012

Mem No ACS 24016

Bharat Dhall
Head of Finance

Place: Gurugram

Date: May ll,2021

Particulars Note
No.

For the year ended
March3l,202l

For the year ended
March3l,2020

Revenue From Operations
Interest income

Fees and commission income

Net gain on fair value changes

19

20

21

6,262.00

82.82

81.86

7,004.70

97.48

185.03
Total revenue from operations 6,426.68 7,287.21

Other income 180.92 99.79
Total income 6,607.60 7,387.00

EXPENSES
Finance costs

Impairment on financial instruments

Employee benefits expense

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

22

23

24

10

25

1,086.81

770.23

2,014.36

484.78

552.19

1,873.90

454.59

3,044.59

401.09

758.54
Total expenses 4,908.37 6,532.77

Profit before tax

Tax expense:

Current tax

Deferred tax
598.44

Ql6.43)

1,699.23 854.29

314.85

-21.75
Net profit after tax 1,317.22 561.19

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss

33.69

(8.00)

1.84

(0.s4)

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,342.91 562.49
Eamings per equity share

Basic Ss)
Diluted (Rs)

0.35

0.35

0.15

0.14

tina
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ART Housing Finance (India) I imited
Satement of Changee ia Equity for the year ended on March 31, 2021
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Share

as at 2019

share capital issued during the year ended l\{arch 31,2020

B. Other Note

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1-3

The accompanying notes form an htegral part of these Ind AS Financial Statements

This ie the Balance Sheet referred to in our report ofeven date
FoTSMMP&Company
Fim Registration Numbec 120438W

Chartered

Shah

For and on behalfof the Board ofDirectors of
ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Partner

Membership No: 166729

Place Mumbai

Date: May 11,2021

Kumar Pandey

Chairperson

DIN:00250437

Bharat Dhall
Head of Finance

Place: Gurugram
Date:May 11,2027

VipinJ,
Ir{anaging Director &

DIN:03456031

[n],0**,.,
Wholetime Ditector &

Company Secretary

DIN:08741012

Mem No ACS 24016

Particulars Amouill
38,500.0(

Balance as at }Iarch 31,2020 38,500.01

Equity share capital issued during the year ended March3l,Z0Zl

at the March 38,500.00

Reserve and SurplusParticulars

Shared Based
Payments

Statutory
Reserve

Special Reserve Reained
Eamings

Total

Profit after tax for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax)

Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to statutory reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Transfer to special reserve u/s 360X"iD of the Income Tar Acg
t96r
Shared based payments

Balance as at March 31,2019 27.86

38.86

168.23

124.14

359.92 764.25

(124.r4)

561.79

1.30

562.49

38.86

1,320.26

561.19

1.30

562.49

Balance at the March 31,2020 66.72 168.23 484.06 7,202.60 1,921.67

Profit after tax for the year

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax)

Toal Compreheneive Income for the ycar
Transfer to statutory reserve u/s 29C ofthe NHB Act, 1987

Transfer to special reserve u/s 36(1))(vii) of the Income Tax Acg
7961

Shared based payments 24.13

399.55

1,317.22

25.69

1,342.91

(3ee.ss)

24.13

1,317.22

25.69

1,342_91

Balance at the March 31,2021 90.85 168.23 883.61 2,145.96 3,288.66

2021



Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31,2020

484.78

7r0.57

1,086.81

(14.43)

6.71

24.13

(81.86)

(r15.21)

6,195.08

(1,115.27)

1.92

2,?35.67

1,699.23

(6,146.79)

(47.e0)

621.44

(463.36)

4.27

(78.74)

8,773.42

8,809.13

(486.27)

11,058.53

00.86)
41.31

2,282.73

147.77

105.57

401.09

427.15

r,763.30

1 10.60

27.U
38.86

(18s.03)

(80.24)

6,598.41

(1,712.82)

0.55

1,319.14

854.29

(6,924.46)

2.02

(633.84

(s21.88)

(22.e6)

(37.e0)

5,435.05

4,220.46

(252.e2)

5,286.68

0ss.38)
1.13

104.1 I
(37.8e)

81.16

(6.87)

0,07e.28)
Q54.82)

2,572.46

(1 s,31 6.07)

(187.33)

(1s,s03.40) (1,334.10)

3,945,71(r,872.4t)

3,991.31

2,118.90

45.50

3,991.31

(1,8?2,4t) 3,945.7t

I. Cash flow from operating activities:
Net Pro6t before tu as per Statement of Profit and Loss

Adiusments for:

Interest income on loans

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Impairment on financial instruments - Expected credit loss @CL)
Interest on borowings
Interest on lease liability

hans and advances written off
Share bmed payments

Net gain on fair value changes

Interest Income on bank deposits

Interest received on loans

Interest paid on borrowings

lnss on sale of property, plant and equipmeot

Cash generated from operations before working capital changes

Working Capital Changes

(Increase) / decrease in Other financial assets

(Increase) / decrease in non-financial assets

Increase / (decrease) in Enancial liabilities

lncrease / (decrease) in provisions

Increase / (decrease) in non-financial liabilities

Inans repaid/ (disbuned) (net)

Direct axes (paid)/adiusted

Net cash used in operating ectivities Q)

IL Cash flow from hvesting ectivitiee:

Purchase ofproperty, plant and equipment and Inangible asses

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant md equipment

Sale of investments measured at FVTPL (net)

Decrease/ (Iocrease) in deposits with banks

Interest received on bank deposits

Net cash used in lay6ring lctivities (II)

II. Cash llow fron financing ectivitiee:

Proceeds from issuance of share capial
Borowiogs other than debt securities issued (net)'

Payment of lease liability

Net c.sh gcnemted from finenciag activities (III)
Net increasc/(decrease) in cash.nd cesh cquiv.letrts (I+U+III)

Cash end cmh equivaleats et thc bcginaing ofthe yeer

Cash and cash equiveletrts .t the cnd ofthe yeer

ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year etrded March3l,202l
(Amount in INR lacs, unless othemise stated)

Summary of Significant

The accompanfng notes fom an integml part of these Ind AS Financial Statements

This is the Statement of Cash Flows refened to in our report of even date

IToTSMMP&Company
Firm Registration Number 120438W

Chrtered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Vipin
Director &

W
Partner

Membership No: 166729

W
Rahul (umar Pandey

Chairpemon

DIN:00250437 ti
(t,H,",

DIN:03456031

Place: Mumbai
(l
tDate: May 11,2021

Bharat Dhall
Head of Finance

Place: Gurugmm

Date: May 11,2021

Noter
1, Cash flow statement has beeo prepared under indirect method as set out in the IND AS 7 nCash Flow StatemenC'

2, Previous year Egures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever applicable

o-
OJ

*
Director &

Company Secretary

DIN: 08741012

Mem No ACS 24016
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 3lr}0Zl

Company overview

ART Housing Finance (India) Limited (the 'Company) was incorporated on July 16,2073 vrith its registered office in
New Delhi. The Company is a subsidiary of ART Business and Consumer Finance (India) Private Umited (the'Holding
Company).

The Company is registered with the National Housing Bank (NHB) under section 29A of the National Housing Bank
Act , 1987 as non deposit taking Housiog Finance Company vide registration no. 01.0176.19. The main objects of the
Company, inter alia, 

^re 
to c ffy out the business of providing long term finance for purchase/construction/ repair and

renovation of new/ existing flats/ houses for residential purposes. The business is conducted through its branches in
India and supported by a network of agents for sourcing loans. ART Housing Finance (India) Limited is the holding
company for investments in its associates and subsidiary companies.

2 Basis of Preparation and Presentation
2,1 Statement of Compliance and basis of preparation

The financial statements ("financial statements') have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Qndian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as per Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant amendment rules
issued thereafter ("Ind AS'), the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,2013 (the "Act") and the gu.idelines issued

by the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") and National Housing Bank ("NHB') to the extent applicable. Financial

statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period as explained below.

For all periods up to and including the year ended N{arch 37,2079, the Company had prepared its financial statements

in accordance with Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with
patagraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,

2016 and the Master Directions issued by NHB (hereinafter referred as'Previous GAAP). These hnancial statemenrs

for the year ended lr{arch 37,2020 were the fust Iod AS Financials, the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind
AS.

Accounting policies have been consistendy applied except where a newly-issued Ind AS is initially adopted or a revision
to ao existing Ind AS requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Additional information reguired in terms of Master Dkection - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance

Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,2027 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120I03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17,2021
have been prepared on the basis of previous Indian GAAP.

2.2 Presentation of Financials Statements

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and

presented in the format prescribed in the Division III of Schedule III to the Act. The Statement of Cash Flows has

been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 "statement of Cash Flows".

The Company presents its Balance Sheet in the order of liquidity.

The Company generally repotts frnancial assets and Enancial liabilities on a gross basis in the Balance Sheet. They are

offset and reported net basis only when Ind AS specifically permits the same or it has an unconditjonal legally

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event. Similady, the Company

offsets incomes and expenses and reports the same on a net basis when permitted by Ind AS specilically unless they are

material in nature.

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded off to the nearest

lacs as permitted by Schedule III to the Act, except when otherq/ise stated.

0
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2021

2.3

2.4

2.4.1

2.4.2

Basis of Measuremeot
The Enancial statements have been ptepared on a accrual basis as a going concem under the historical cost convention
except for certain Enancial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting date as required
under the relevant Ind AS. A historical cost is a meastue of value used in accounting in which the price of an asset on
the balance sheet is based on its nominal or original cost when acquired by the Company.

Use of Estimates andJudgements
The preparation of the Eoancid staternents in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to make use of
estimates, iudgements and assumptions in view of the inherent uocertainties and a level of subiectivity involved in

rneasurement of items, it is possible that the outcomes in tle subsequent financial years could differ from those on

which the Management's estimates are based. Accounting estimates could chaoge from period to period and revisioos

to accounting estimates are recogrised prospectively. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation

of the financial staternents are prudent and reasonable.

In particular, information about signiEcant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical iudgments in applying

accounting policies that have the most signi8cant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial staternents is

included in the follorring notes:

Businese Model Asseesment

The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how the Company's financial instruments are

managed together to achieve a particular business obiective.

Based on this assessment and future business plans of the Company, the management has measured its financial assets

at amortised cost as the asset is held within a business model whose oblective is to collect contractual cash flows, and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principle and interest ('the

'SPPI cdterion)."

Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the busioess model for which the remaining

financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in

business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those instruments.

Determination of Expected Credit Loss (*ECL')
The measurement of impairment losses (ECL) across all categories of financial assets, except assets vhich are valued at

Fait Vdue throrsh P&L G'VPTL), tequires iudgement. In particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows based on Company's historical experience and collateral values when determining impairment losses along

with the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in
which can result in diffetent levels of allowances.

The Company's Expected uedit loss (ECL) calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of under\ing
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are

considered in accounting fudgements and estimates include:

The Company's model, which assigns Probability of default @D)s
The Company's criteda for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for Enancial

assets should be measured on a Lifetime expected credit loss pTECL) basis

The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenados and, economic inputs, and the effect on PDs, -

Exposure at default (EAD)s and Loss given default (.GD)s
Selection of forwardJooking macroeconomic scenarios and theit probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs

0\\ru
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ART Housiag Fiaaace (ndia) rirnilsd
Notes fomi'g part of Financiar statemeats for the yeat eaded March 3rr2o2r

2,4.3 Defined Beaefit plane

2.4.4 Share-Basedpayments

2.4.5

2.4.6

2.4,6 Leases

v

The cost of the defined beoefit gratuity plan and the present value of the granrity obligation are determined usingactuadal valuations' An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actualdevelopments in the future' These include the determinatioo of the discount rate, future salary increases and monalityrates' Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highlysensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reponing date.

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires use of an appropriate varuation model which isdependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. The company measures the cost of equity-settled transactionswith employees using Black-Scholes Model to determine the fair value of the options on the grant date. Inputs into thevaluation model' includes assumption such as the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield.

Efrective Iaterest Rate (EIR) method
The company's EIR methodology, recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate ofa constant tate of teturn over the expected behavioural life of loans, This estimation, by nature, requires an element ofjudgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments.

Fair Value measuremeat
'u?hen the fair values of Enancial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured basedon quoted prices in active matkets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model.The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where f,ossible, but where this is not feasible, a degree ofjudgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidiry risk,

;:ffi1fd 
volatility' changes in assumptioos about these factors courd affect the reponed fair varue of Enanciar

The company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identi'cationof a lease requires signiEcant judgment' Thc company uses signi6cant judgement in assessing the lease term (includinganticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The company d.t.l^irr., the lease term as the non_cancellableperiod of a lease' together with both periods covered by .., opior, to extend the lease if the company is reasonablycertain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to teminate the lease if the company is reasonablycertain not to exercise that option' In assessing whether th. corrrp*y is reasonabry certain to exetcise an option toextend a lease' or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and ckcumstances thatcreate an economic incentive for the company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the optionto terminate the lease' The company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for aportfolio of leases with similar characteristics.
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 3r,zo2r

3 Summary of the Significant Accounting policies
This note provides a surnmary of the signiEcant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements' These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated,

3.1 RevenueRecognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the
revenue can be reliably measured and there exists reasonable certainty ofits recovery.

3.1.1 Interest
Interest income on financial instruments is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable.

Effective Intetest Rate (..EIRrt)
EIR is calculated by considering all costs and incomes attributable to acquisition of a financial asset or assumption o[ a
financial liability and it represents a rate that exactly d.iscounts estimated future cash payments/receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset/financial liability to the gross carryingamounr of a financial asset or to the amortised
cost of a financial liability.

Interest income/expenses is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired
financial assets/liabilties (i'e. at the amortised cost of the Enancial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss
allowance)' For credit-impaired financial assets interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost
of the credit impaired financial assets (i,e. the gross carryingamount less the allowance for expected credit losses).

3.1.2 Overdue Interest and other charges
Overdue interest and other ancillary charges in respect ofloans is recognized upon realisation.

3.1.3 Net gain on fair value changes
Financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL. The company recognises gains/losses on fair value change of

financial assets measured at FVTPL and realised gains/losses on derecognition of financial asset measured at FVTpL.

3.1.4 Dividend Income
Dividend income on equity shares is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

3.1.5 Fee and Commission Income
Fee and commission income include fees ot-her than those that are an integral part o[ EIR. The Company recognises the
fee and commission income in accordance with the terms o[the relevant .o.rt 

^.tr/ agreemenr and when it is probable
that the Company will collect the consideration.

3.1.6 Other lncome
other Income rePresents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is recognised on accrual basis
when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

3.1.7 Taxes

Incomes are recognised net of the Goods and Services Tax/Service

t\cu
.<1

)Y
*

bn
il

v
Tax, wherever applicable.



ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of Financial statements for the year ended March 3rr202l

3.2 Expenditures

3.2.7 Borrowing Costs

Bortowing costs include interest exPense calculated using the EIR on respective financial instruments measured at

amortised cost and finance charges on lease.

3,2.2 Fees and commission expenses
Fees and commission exPenses which are not directly linked to the sourcing of financial assets, such as commission/
incentive incurred on value added services and products distribution, etc., are recognised in rhe statement o[profit and
loss on an accrual basis.

3.2.3 Taxes

Expenses are recognised net of the Goods and Services Tax/Service Tax, except where credit for the input tax is not

s tatutorily permitted.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash comprises of cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term deposits with banks
(with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of placement) and cheques on hand. Short term and
liquid investments being subiect to more than insignificant risk of change in value, are not included as part of cash and
cash equivaleots.

3.4 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liabiliw
or equity instrument of another entity. Trade receivables and payable, loan receivables, investments in securities and
subsidiaries, debt securities and other borrowings, preferential and equiry capital etc. are some examples of financial
instruments.

All the financial instruments are recognised on the date when the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions
of the financial instruments. For tradable securities the Company recognises the financial instruments on settlemenr
date.

3.3

3.4.1

3.4.1.1

3.4.1.2

Financial Assets

Financial assets include cash, or an equiry instruments of another entity, or a contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset from another entity etc. Few examples of financial assets are loan receivables, investment in equity and
debt instruments, trade receivables, cash and cash equivarents, and bank balances.

Recognition and Initial Measurement of Financial Assets
Financial assets, with the exception of Loans and advances to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e.
the date that the Company becomes 

^ 
p^rq to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Loans and advances to

customers are recognised on disbwsement of the loan. The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition
depends on their PurPose and characteristics and the management's intention when acquiring them.

Financial assets are init-ially measured at fair vaiue. Transaction costs and revenues that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets [other than financial assets measured at Fair value through profit or loss

€\rfPL)] are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs and revenues directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at FVTpL are recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets
For the pulPose of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies and measures all its financial assets based on the
business model for managing the assets and the asset's contractual terms, either at:
. Amortised cost
. Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income trVOCI)

Value through ProEt and Loss f'VTpL)

W
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 3112021

3.4.1.2.1 Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost
The Company classiEes and measures Cash and Bank balances, Loans, Trade Receivable, certain debt investments and

other financial assets at amortised cost if following condition is met:

' Financial Assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and

that have cootractual cash flows that are solely payments of principd and interest (SPPI) on the principal outstanding.

After initial rneastrement, such finaocial assets are subsequendy measuted at amortised cost using the effective interest

rate @IR) method less impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium

on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income

in the statement of proEt and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and

Ioss.

3.4.1.2.2 Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income ((FVOCI")
The Company classifies and measures certain debt instruments at FVOCI when the investments are held within a

business model, the objective of which is achieved by both, collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
instruments and the contractral terms of the financial instruments meet the SPPI test.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Intetest income and impairment loss are recognised in statement

of profit and loss. Any garn or loss on subsequent measurement is recognised in OCI and on derecognition the

cumulative gain or loss recognised in OCI will be recycled to statement of profit and loss.

3.4.1.2.3 Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (.FVTPL',)
Financial assets at FVTPL are:
. Assets with contractual cash flows that ate not SPPI; and,/or

'Assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or held to collect and sell; or
. Assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option.
These assets are subsequendy measured at fair value. Net gain and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are

recognised in statement of profit and loss.

3.4.1.3 Reclaseificatioa of Financial Assets

If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected are

teclassiEed. The classiEcation and measurement requirements related to the new category apply prospectively from the
fust day of the fust reporting period following the change in busioess model that result in reclassi$ing the Company's

Enancial assets. During the curent finaocial year and previous accounting period there v/as no change in the business

model under which the Company holds financial assets and therefore no reclassifications were made.

3.4.r.4 Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) when:
The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expfued; or
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third parry under an assignment arrangement and the Company
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of tlle asset. Once the asser is derecognised, the Company does
not have any continuing involvement in the same.

li7hen Company traosfers its financial assets through the partial assignment route and accordingly derecognises the
ttansferred portion as it neither has any continuing involvement in the same nor does it retain any control. If the
Company retains the right to service the financial asset for a fee, it recognises either a servicing asset or a servicing
liability for that servicing contract.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between:

The carrying amount (measuted at the date of derecognition)

less any new liability assumed) is recognised in
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2021

3.4.2 FinaacialLiabilities
Financial liabilities include liabilities that represent a contJactual obligation to deliver cash or another financial assets to
another entity, or a contract that may or will be setded in the entities own equity instruments. Few examples of financial
liabilities are trade payables, debt securities and other borrowings.

3.4.2.1 Initial recogaition and measurement of Fiaancial Liabilities
Financid liabilities ate classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at

FVTPL if it is classiEed as held-for trading or it is designated as on initial recognition. All financial liabilities are

recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly atttibutable
transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank over&afts.

3.4.2.2 Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Fiaancial Liabilities
Financial liabilities ate subsequendy measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate method, Interest

exPense is recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of
pro6t and loss. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

3.4.2.3 Reclassification of Financial Liabilities
The Company doesn't reclassifr its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never
reclassified.

3.4.2.4 Detecognition of Fiaancial Liabilitiee
A Enancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an

existing financial liability is replaced by another ftom the same lender on substantially different tenns or the terms of an

existing liability ate substantially modi6ed, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial tiability
and the consideration paid is recognised in pro6t or loss.
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ART Housing Finance (India) I imited
Notes forming part of Financial statements for the year ended March 3lrzo2l

3.4.3

3.4.3.r

Impairment of Financial Assets
Overview of ECL priaciples
Expected Credit Losses (ECL) are recognised for financial assets held under amortised cost, debt instruments
measured at FVOCI, and certain loan commitments.

Financial assets where no significant increase in credit risk has been observed are considered to be in ,stage 1, and for
which a 12 month ECL is recognised' Financial assets that are considered to have significant increase in credit risk are
considered to be in 'stage 2' and those which are in default or for which there is an objective evidence of impairment
ate considered to be in 'stage 3' for which a lifetime ECL is recognised.

At initial recognition, allowance is required for ECL towards default events that are possible in the next 12 months, or
less, where the remaining Iife of financial asset is less than 12 months.

In the event of a significant increase in credit risk or default, allowance is required for ECL towards all possible default
events over the expected life of the financial instrument (.lifetime ECL).

Financial assets (and the related impairment allowances) are written off in full, when there is no realistic prospect of
recovery.

Treatuent of the difrerent Btages of liaancial assets aad,the methodology of determination of ECL
(a) Credit impaired/default (stage 3)

The Company recognises a financial asset to be credit impaired and in stage 3 by considering relevant objective
evidence, primarily whether
- Coouactual payments of either pdncipal or interest are past due for more than 90 days;
- The loan is otherwise consideted to be in default.

Definition of Default
The company considers the following as constituting an event of default:

' the borower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the Company; or
' the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to t],e company in full.

rUyhen assessing if the borower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Company takes into account both qualitative
and quantitative indicators. The information assessed depends on the type of the asset, for example in corporate
lending a qualitative indicator used is the breach of covenants, which is not as relevant for individual lending.
Quantitative indicators, such as overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same counte{party are
key inputs in this analysis.

(b) Significaat increase ia credit risk (stage 2)
An assessment of whether credit risk has increased signiEcantly since initial recognition is performed at each reporting
period by considering the change in the risk of default of the loan exposqre. However, unless identified at an earlier
stage, 30 days past due is considered as an indication of financial assets to have suffered a signi6cant increase in credit
risk' Based on other indications such as borowe/s frequently delaying payments beyond due dates though not 30 days
past due are included in stage 2 for mortgage loans.

The .measurement of risk of defaults under stage 2 is computed on homogenous portfolios, generally by nature of loans,
tenors, undedying collatetal, geographies and borrower pro6les. The default risk is assessed using pD (probability of
default) derived from past behavioural trends ofdefault across the identified homogenous portfolios. These past trends
factot in the past customer behavioural trends, cedit transition probabilities and macroeconomic conditions, The
assessed PDs are then aligned considering future economic conditions that are determined to have a bearing on ECL.

(c) without signfficant iactease in crcdit risk since initial recognitioa (stage 1)
ECL resulting from default events that are possible in the next 12 months are recognised for financial instruments in

stage 1' The Company has ascertained default possibilities on past behavioural trends witnessed for each homogenous

application/behavioural score cards and other
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 3l,z02l

3.4.3.2 Measurement of Expected Credit Losses (ECL)
The company calculates ECL based on probability-weighted scenarios and historical data to measure expected cash
shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the portfolio EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash
flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the company expects to
receive' When estimating ECL for undrawn loan commitments, the Company estimates the expected portion of the
loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the present value of the
expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down. The expected cash shortfa]ls are discounted at an
approximation to the expected EIR on the loan.
The Company measures ECL on an individual basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios of loans that share similar
economic risk characteristics' The measurement of the loss allowance is based on the present value of the asset,s
expected cash flows using the asset's original EIR, regardless of whether it is measured on an individual basis or a
collective basis.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Exposure at Default (EAD) is an estimate of the exposu re at a future default date, taking inro account expected
changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interesr, whether scheduled by
contract or otherwise' expected drawdowns on committed facilties and accrued interest from missed payments.

Probability of Default (PD) is the probability of whether borowers will default on their obligations which is
calculated based on historical default rate surrunary ofpast years using origination vintage analysis.

Loss Given Default (LGD) is an estimate of the loss from a financial asset given that a default occurs. The LGD is
computed using a 'qvorkout approach" based on the Company's own loss and recovery experience. It is usually
expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

3.4.3,3 Collateral Valuation and Repossession
To mitigate the credit risk on financial assets, the company seeks to use collateral, where possible as per the powers
conferred on tle Housing Finance Companies under the Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and
Enforcement of securities Interest Act,2002 ("SARFAESI'). The company provides fully secured, parially secured
and unsecured loans to individuals and Corporates.

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets in its retail
Portfolio, but engages exterflal agents to recover funds, generally at auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus
funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice, the residenr.ial properties under legal
repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet and not treated as non-current assets held for sale.

3.4.3.4 Forward looking information
In its ECL models, the company relies on a broad range of forward looking information as economic inputs. The
inputs and models used for calculating ECL may not always capture all characteristics of the market risk at the date of
the financial statements' To reflect this, qualitative adiustmeots or ovedays are occasionally made as temporary
adiustments when such differences are significantly material.

3.4.3.5 Write-off
Loans and debt securities are written off when the company has no realistic Prospects or reasonable expectations of
recovering the Enancial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company determines
that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
arnounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Company may apply enforcement
activities to Enancial assets written off.
impairment gains.
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ART Housing Finance (ndia) Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements fot the year ended March 31,2021

3.5

3.6

Fair value measuremelt
The Company measures Enancial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date using

valuation techniques.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordedy transaction

between market paticipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the

transactioo to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for tlle asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabiliry

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liabiliry is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generare economic
beneEts by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufFrcient data are

available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

AII assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant ro the fair value
measurement as a whole:

kvel 1 
- Quoted (unadiusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

I-evel2 
- 

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

direcdy or indirecdy observable

Level 3 
- 

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation @ased on the

lowest level input that is signiEcant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting year

Property, Plant and Equipment (gPPE")
PPE held for use are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses. PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item is expected to flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits

availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and

any attributable cost ofbringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Capital expenditure incurred on
rented properties is classified as 'Leasehold improvements' under PPE.

Fot transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of PPE measured as per

IGAAP less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment on the transition date of April 7,2079.
An item of property, plant and eguipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected to adse from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in the p,ofit and loL
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ART Housing Finance (Iodia) Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year eoded March 31,2021

3.7 Intangible Assete

Software which is not integral part of the hardware is classified as intangibles and is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation. These ate recognized as assets if it is probable that future economic benefits anributable to such assets

will flow to the Company and the cost of the assets can be reliably measured. Intangible assets acquired separately are

measured on initid recognition at cost. Follouring initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

3.8 Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress includes assets not ready for the intended use and is carried at cost, comprising direct cost and
related incidental expenses.

3.9 Depreciation and Amortisation
3.9.1 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment:

(a) Useful lives of assets are determined by the Management by an internal technical assessment except where such

assessment suggests a life significandy different from those prescribed by Schedule II - Part C of the Companies Act,
2013.

(b) Depreciation on leasehold improvements is provided on straight line method over the primary period of lease o[
premises or estimated use6:l life whichever is lower.

(c) Depreciation on addition to assets and assets sold during the year is being provided for on a pro rata basis with
reference to the month in which such asset is added or sold as the case may be.

(d) Tangible assets which are depreciated over useful life different than those indicated in Schedule II are as uoder:

PPE Full Life
Building 60 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Office equipment 5 years

Motor Vehicles 8 years

Servers 6 years

Computers and printers 3 years

3.9.2 Amortization of Intangible Assets

The intangible assets are amortjsed using the straight line method over a period o[ six years, which is the Management's

estjmate of its useful life. The usefirl lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted

prospectively, if appropriate.

3.10 Impairment of non-hnancial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable arnount' The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In assesslng
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling
price, recent market transactions are into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, antakep

w

appropriate valuation model is used.
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of Fioancial Statements for the year ended March 3712021

3.tt
3.77.1

3.11.2

3.11.2.1

3.11.2.2

Employee Benefits
Share-based payments
The gtock options granted to employees pursuant to the Company's Stock Options Schemes, are measuted at the fair

value of the options at the gmnt date using Black-Scholes Model. The fair value of the options determined at grant date

is accounted as employee compensation cost over the vesting period on a straight line basis over the period of option,

based on the number ofgrants expected to vest, with corresponding inctease in equity.

At the end of each reporting year, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equiry instruments expected to

vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that

the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments

Reserve

Retirement and other employee benefits
Provident Fund
All eligible employees of the Company are entided to receive beoefits under the Provident Fund. The Company makes

a conttibution to provident fund on monthly basis. The contributions ate recognised as an expense in the year in which

they are incurred.
Gratuity
For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund is determined basis actuarial valuations being carried at each

balance sheet date. The retitement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value ofthe
defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, as reduced by the fair value of planned assets.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding arnounts included in

net intetest on the net de6ned benefit liability and the retum on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest

on the net defined benefit liability), ate recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit

to retained eamings through OCI in the year in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss

in subsequent years.

Past service costs are recognised in Profit or Loss on the eatlier of: The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net de6ned beneEt liability or asset. The Company

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of pro6t and loss.

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtaiknents and non-routjne

setdements; and Net interest expense or income

3.12 Leases

Company has applied lnd AS 116 'Leases' it to all lease contracts existing on Apd 7, 2079 using the Modified
Rettospective Approach. Based on the same and as permitted under the specific transitional provisions in the standard,

the Company has not restated the comparative figures, On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in
tecognition of an asset reptesenting the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset) and a coresponding liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liabiliry). Company will separately recognise

the interest exPense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. The Company has

further elected not to recognise ROU assets and lease liabilities for leases of low value assets and for short-term leases

(ess than 12 months).

3.13 Investments in Subsidiaries
Investment in Subsidiaries is recognised at cost and are not adjusted to fair value at the end o[ each reporting period.
Cost of investment represents amount paid for acquisition of the said investments.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period, if there are any indications that the said investments may be

impaired. If so, the Company estimates recoverable value/amount of

tuttJtui8At

deficit in the

V
over cost.

v
investment and provides for impairment,



ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2021

3.14 Foteign currency ttanslation
The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, which is also the Company's functional currency

Initial recognition

Foreign curency transactions are recorded in the reporting cuffency, by applying to the foreign cuffency amount the

exchange rate betweeo the reporting curtency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are re-translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.

Nonmonetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported

using the exchange rate at the date ofthe transaction.

Exchange differences

AII exchange differences are accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss

3.15 Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share ate calculated by dividing the net pro6t or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders

by the weighted average number ofequity shares outstanding during the year. Pardy paid equity shares are treated as a

ftaction of an equity share to the extent that they are entided to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity

share during the reporting year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net pro6t or loss for the year attributable to equity

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the ye r are adiusted for the effects of all

dilutive potential equity shares.

3.18

3.18.1

3.18.2

Taxes on Income
Current tax
Curent tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 7967; and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards

(ICDS) prescribed therein. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the teporting date.

Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised in correlatjon to the underlying transaction

either in OCI or direcdy in other equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subfect to interpretation and establishes provisions where

appropdate.

Deferred Tax
Deferred ta:( assets and liabilities ate recognized using the balance sheer approach for the future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the carying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, aod unutjlized

business loss aod depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is

probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax

losses, depreciation cary-fonvards and unused tax credits could be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred ta:. assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no

looger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part ofthe deferred tax asset to be utilsed.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date, and are recognised to the extent that it has

become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the

asset is rcalized or the liability is setded, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the balance sheet date.

Deferted tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised either in OCI or direcdy in other equity.

Defered tax assets and liabilities ate offset s/hen there is a legally enforceable right to set off cureot tax assets against

cunent ta-x liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements fot the year ended March 3l,20zl

3.19

3.20

3.21

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are tecognised only when:
(i) The Company has a present obligation (egal or constructive) as a result of a past event; and
(ii) It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;
and

(iii) A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect of time value
of money is material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those cash flows.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:
(i) A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable thar an outflow o[ resources will be required to
setde the obligation; or
(ii) A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable esrimate is possible.

Contingent Assets:

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements.
contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are revievzed at each Balance Sheet date.

Non-Current Assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carryingamount is intended to be recovered pnncipally through
a sale (rathet than through continuing use) when the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for sale of such asset and the sale is highly probable and is expected to
quali$' for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classi6rcation.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at lo'd/er of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell.

Statement of Cash Flows
Statement of cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities.

Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method as set out in the Ind AS -7 adjusting rhe net profir
for the effects of:

i' changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions ofa non-cash nature;
ii' Non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unreal-ised foreign curreflcy gains and losses; and
iii. All other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balartces) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not
available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet.
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements fot the yeat ended March 3l'2021

(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherudse stated)

4 Cash and Cash

* During the FY 2020-21,a sum of Rs 34.40lacs has been provisionally attached by Enforcement Directorate on May 5,

2020 nconnection with the ongoing litigation in matter of promoter goup. The Company has 6led petition with

Adjudicating Authoritry in ED for telease of these funds and matter is under process.

5 Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash

*Jx During the Current financial year oo May 79,2020 Fixed Deposit lying u/ith the Company had been provisiooally

attached by Enforcement Directorate (ED) in connection with the ongoing litigation in matter of promoter group. The

Company had filed a petition in Hooorable Delhi High Court for release of these funds.

Subsequendy as per Honotable Delhi High Cout Order dated 25th September2020, bank had released an amount of
Rs 4285.33 Lacs to NHB against refinance availed under Lift Scheme from fixed deposits. As on the close of the

cuffent financial yeut an amount of Rs. 943.86 Lacs which is still attached and matter is pending with Adjudicating

Authorityin ED

6 Loans

xExpected Credit loss includes 534 Lacs due to Covid-19 pandemic.

As at
March 31,2020

As at
March 31,2021

Particulars

1,1,.57

2,107.33

2.1,2

39.19

3,950.00

Balances with banks:

In Current Accountsx

In Deposit accounts with original maturlty of 3 months or less

Cash on hand

2,778,90 3,997.37Total

As at
March 31,2020

Particulats As at
Match 31,2021

1,,043.86 1,,191,.57

In Deposit accounts with banks

Odginal maturity more than 3 monthsx*

1,043.86 1,,191,.57Total

Particulars As at
March 31,2021

As at
Match 37,2020

Loans (Amortised Cost)

Loans to Individuals

Other Loans

Total - Gtoss

Less: Impainnent loss allowance (Expected Credit Loss)*

40,827.50

1,328.67

48,672.80

2,204.84

42,156.77

1,,267.63

50,877.64

557.07

Total - Net 40,888.54 50,320.57

)
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes foming part of the Financiel Stat€ments for the year ended March 3t 2021

(Amount in INR lacs, unless othevise sated)

6.1 Inans to Individuals
An of in the amount of laans to Individuals and the ECL allowances, as follows:

Reconciliation of ECL allowance for llans to Individuals is below:

6.2 Other kans
An analysis of changes in the grcss carrying amount of Other loans and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to Ioans is, as followE:

Rcconciliation of ECL allowance for Other laans is below:

6.3 of amount of loane

lose allowance Credit6.4

I

Particulars Year ended I{arch 31, 2021 Year entled N'Iar;h 31,'2020

Stage 1 Stige 2l Siasi 3 'Iotal Stagc 1l Stage 2l Stage 3 Total
(irrrss can:ying ronount opening balance

Nes, ilsscts originatcd

Asscts repaid in part or full (excluding
vrite offs)

Asscts writteo off
I'ransftrs to Stage 1

I nnslcrs to Stagc 2

l ransfers to Stage 3

,18,098.06

37.56

(e,443.13)

(6.71)

1 7.04

01,13)
(60.12)

425.94

733.71

148.80

833.28

07.04)
7't.73

(a38s) 83.97

48,672.80

37.56

(7,876.ls)

(6.71)

(0.00)

51,096.03

6,131.44

(r,383.4:)

2t8.29

7.96

29.26

QnTq

l 1.56

(21.[16)

01.s6)
(323 13)

84.42

(e5.73)

344.99

(84.42)

(54.r'8) I 5rl.6ll

51,343.58

6,73t.44

(9,402.22)

(0.00)

Gross carrying amount closing balance 38,571.57 1,18e.881 1,066.05 40,827.s0 4s,0e8.061 4zs.e4l 148.80 48,672.80

Particulars Year Year ended March 31, 2020

Stage I Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage I Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
EOi.. opcning bdarcc
li(-|, llemeasuremeots due to changes in
liAI) / assumptions Q.,let)

r\sscts writtcu off
'l ransfers tr: Stige 1

lransfcrs to Stage 2
'l'ransfers to Stagc 3

89.13

80.35

-1.51

74.16

-4.n
-4.62

m.63
,10 0,

-14.',t6

4.20

-57.62

41.91

322.67

62.24

221.61

642.04

-1.51

84.1

(o 2T

(6.26)

11.65

().14)

31.09

18.?5

0.53

(l 1.6s)

0.s8)

7.68

20.78

5.14

11'

122.92

98.75

ECL closing balance r73.3t 262.08 426.82 862.21 89.13 90.63 4t.91 221.67

Paniculars Year ended March 31,2021 Ycar crrdcd Nlarch 31, 2020

Staqe 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Toul Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount opening balance

Ncw asscts originatcd

Asscts rcpaid in pat or ftrll (cxclucling
writc otfs)

;\sscts rvrittcn off
'I nnsfers 10 Stace 1

'l iansfcrs to Stagc 2

I ralsicrs to Stage 3

2,204.84

(876.17)

(1,328.67) 1,328.61

2,2M.84

(876.r7)

0.00

4,708.53

(2,503.6IJ)

4,708.53

(2,503.68)

Gross carrying amount closing balancc 0.00 1,328.67 1,328.6'. 2,2U.84 2,204.84

cnded I\larch 2021 Ycar ended I\Iarch 31,2020Paniculars

Stage I Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
li(,1., opcning balancc

I,l(lL liememurements duc to chrurges in
I iAI) ./ assurnptions O-et)
i\sscts vrittcn off
'I'nnsfers to Starc 1

'l'ransfrrs to Stagr 2
'I ranslcrs ro Srage 3

$5.q

-335.40

70.03

335.40

335.40

70.03

7.00

32fi.40

7.00

328.40

ECL closing balance 0.00 ,105.43 405.43 335.40 335.40

Paniculars Stage I Stage 2 Stage 3 | Total
Nlarch 3 l, 2021

N'larch 31, 2()20

38,571.57

5Q,3()2.N.1

2,518.55

425.94

1,066.051

I 4s.80 |

42,156.17

50,8't1.64

Paniculars Stage I Stage 2 Stage 3 | Total
March 31,2021

March 31,2020
113.31

424.53

661.51

90.63

426.821

4r.e1 |

1,261.63

s.57.07

Hou

+

6'

n
i
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notcs foming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 3L,2021

(Amomt in INR lacs, uless othe$ise stated)

7 Investments

tnvestments ln cost,

8 Other Financial Assets

9 Taxes on Income

9.1 Current tax Assets

9,2 Deferred Tax Assets

V

As at
March 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

Particulars

5.00

5.00

2,308.34107.47

5.00

5.00

107.47 2"308.34

ttz.47 2)13.34

112.41 2,313.34

1t2.47 2)r3.34
2,313.34

Investrnents in Subeidiary

ART Dstribution (ndia) Private Limited

50,000 equity shares oflNR 10 each (March 31,2020: 50,000)

Investme nts measurcd at Amortieed Coet

Investments measured at Fair value
Through Other Comprehensive Income

Thrcugh profit or loss

Designated at Fair Value Through Profit or Inss
Investment in Mutual Fmds

Total Inyestments measured at Fair Value

Total Inveetments (A)

Investrnents outside India

Investrnents in India

Total Investments (B)

Total (A) to taUy with (B)
[rss: Allowmce forlmpaiment loss (Q

ttz.47

2)13.34TotalNetD=(A)_(C) lLz.47

Paniculars As at
March 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

Interest accrued on bank deposits

Tntcrast iccnrcd but not due on loans

Sccuritl, I)cposits

Ex Gratia - Interest Refund

Total Gross

I r:ss: Impilmrcnt J,oss Allov'arcc (llxpcctcd Crcdit Loss)

19.61

355.1 1

59.26

90.47

9.97

462.07

56.59

524.45 528.63

45.23

Total Net of Expected Credit [nss 479.2t 528.63

Particulars As at
March3l,202l

As at
March 31,2020

Advmce Tu (|.let of Provision) 16.71 75.45

Total 16.71 75.45

Paniculam As at
March 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

Defened Tu Assets (Net)

NlAll' (-ri:tlit Lintidement

321.04 tt2.6t
45.44

321.04 158.05Net De ferred Tax Asset

t\ou

:,
tu

b

*
Y
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31^r 202l
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

10 Property, plant and equipment, Other Intangible Assets and Right-of-use Assets

Property, plant and equipment Other Intangible Right to use
assets Assets

Computer
equipment's

Fumiture and
fxtures

Office
equipment's

Vehicles Plant and
machinery

Leasehold
improvements

Total

I lcomnutersoftwarel I 
**::,"-

Cost

Balance as at March 31r 2019

Additions

Disposals

Balance as at March 315 20?-0

Additions

Disposals

359.26

1 8.60

13.09

364.77

3.71

206.17

0.27

0.21

206.23

6.33

194.79

7.98

2.60

200-fi
0.23
l))

79.83

0.69

79.t4

79.74

33.83

33.83

432-7s

432.75

o.32

15306.64

26.85

16.59

1,316.N

0.23

93.72

190.10

128.53

0.73

317.90

10.63

15.90

948.91

948-91

31&..13
Balance as at March 31,2021 361.06 199.90 196.18 (0.00) 33.83 432.43 \?23.4t | | 312.64 | | 564.18

Accumulated depreciation and amortisation
Balance as at March 3t 2019

Charge for the year

Adiustrnents on disposal of assets

Balance as at March 31, 2020

Charge for the year

Adiustments on disposal of assets

193.69

64.91

11.87

246.73

55.13

3.29

60.73

23.30

0.12

83.91

18.86

4.58

54.28

27.66

2.44

73.50

50.24
)a)

1l.71
15.25

0.66

28.30

6.05

34.34

6.50

2.30

8.80

21.66

ztt55
69.30

280.85

69.02

0.30

540_47

796.72

15.09

722.10

220.97

44.83

62.72

52.95

0.55

tt'.t2
74.79

15.56

751.41

151.41

789.02

Balance as at March 31,2021 298.58 98.20 12t.43 0.00 30.46 349.57 8e8.24 | | n$sl I 340.43

Net block
Balance as at March 31,2019

Balance as at March 31,2020
Balance as at March 31, 2021

165.5?

118.04

62.48

145.44

122.32

101.70

140.51

126.67

74.75

66.12

50.84

(0.00)

27.33

25.03

3.3?

22t20
151.90

82.86 ffill *,-ll ?97.50

223.75

t
lJ

ul)

+

a
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 3lrzo2l
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

ll Other Non-Financial Assets

taking
The Company's policy is to realise collateral on a timely basis. The Company does not use non-cash collateral for its
operations.

12 Trade

t3 than Debt Securities)

Particulars

considered good
Advances

Expenses

with government authorities

Acquired properties fteld for sale)

Total Gross

Provision for Credit Loss

As at
March31,2021

As at
Match 31,2020

30.58

42.56

88.33

12.90

656.29

58.21

60.70

12.90

174.37

7,71

788.10

'otal Net of ECL 166.66 788.10

Particulars As at
March3l,202l

As at
Match 31,2020

enteqprises and small enterprises
outstandiog dues ofcreditors other than micro enterprises

outstanding dues of

small enterpdses

1.37

17.94

3.63

1,9.26

19.37 22.89

I ,,iUi/i8Al

c

*x

<\

tu

p

+
Y

t\ou

Particulars As at
Match3l,202l

As at
March 3L,2020

3,492.32

14,066.05

4,734.12

3,492.32 7

Secured

Term Loans

From National Housing Bank (NHB)
From Banks

Borowings (A)

Amortised Cost

in India

outside India
3,492,32 18,800.17

Total
3,492.32

v
orrowings (B)

18,800.17



-

-

Notes:
13'1 Secured tetm loans from Banks is towards loan from State Bank of India and carry rate of interest of 9.50oh p.a. The loan is

having tenure of 7 years from the date of disbursement and are repayable in 20 quarterly instalments after a moratori w of 24
months' the repayment commences from Decembe r 31,2019. These loans are secured by hypothecation (exclusive charge) of
the loans given by the Company.

The intetest rate fot the afotementioned term loans are linked to the Marginal cost of Fund Based Lending Rate (tr{clR) of
the respective lenders.

ART Houeing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial statements for the year ended March 3tr2ozl
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise sated)

13'2 Cash credit borrowings from bank ate secured against the loan receivables ofthe Company, and are repayable on demand.

13.3 in liabilities from actlvrtres

v

As at
Match3l,202L

As at
Match 31,2020

Opening balances as at beginning of the year

(other debt

balances as at end ofthe

Cash flows

Other- amortisatioo of transaction cost

18,800.17

(15,316.04

8.22

19,865.65

(1,079.28)

13.80

3,492.32 18,800.17

\{'lu

*

x

than



ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial statements for the year ended March 3152021
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stzted)

1i.4 Terms of of as at March 31,2021

Terms of of as at March 31,2020

v

Particulars Repayment frequency
and Original tenure

Rate of Interest Due within 1

yea(
Duelto2

years
Due2to3years Due3to5years Due ) 5 years Ur Totalnamortisedl

bo.ro*irrgl

"".tlFrom NHB

From Banks

Quartedy
Tenure > 3 years

Quarterly
Tenure > 3 years

4.18o/o to 8.55oh

9.500h 500.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 999.65 nrr,l 3,492.32

Total 500.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 999.65 (7.33)1 3,492.32

Particulars Repayment
Original tenure

Rate of Interest Due within I
yeat

Duelto2
yeafs

Due2to3years Due3to5years Due > 5 years Unamortised
borrowing

cost

Total

From NHB

From Banks

Quaftedy
Tenure > 3 yeas

Quartedy
Tenure > 3 years

4.86oh b 9.55o/o

9.500h

2,362.28

1,000.00 1,000.00

2,362.28 2,362.28

1,000.00 1,749.67

4,084.56 2,894.65

(1s.ss)

14,066.05

4,734.12

3,362.28 3,362.28 3,362.28 5,834.23 2,894.65 (ls.55) 18,800.17

t
r)

treut)

+

+U.'UBA,ju'

{

Total



ART Housing Finance (Iadia) Limited
Notes formiag part of the Financial Satements for the year ended M*ch31r2027
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise sated)

14 Other Financial Liabilities

temporary represents to not
reported year.

15 Provisione

asssets more gratulty as

16 OtherNon-FinancialLiabilities

17 Equity Share Capital
Detaila ofauthorized, ieeued, eubecribed and paid up share capital

17.1 Reconciliation ofnumber ofehares outstanding at the beginning and at the end ofthe reporting year:

t\ru

as at

I
J,t

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31,2020

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Temporary book overdrafC

Employee related payables

Lease Obligation (Liability)

Others

129.95

218.20

74.55

36.68

305.38

226.74

804.70

132.15

Total 422.70 1,505.65

Particulars Ae at
March 31, 2021

As at
Match3l,2020

Provision for Employee Benefits - Gratuity * (20.67) 0.76
Total (20.61\ 0.76

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31,2020

Statutory dues

r\dvance fiom customers
12.82

119.46

56.05

154.97
Total 132.28 2t1.02

Particulars Ae at
March3l,202l

As at
March 31,2020

Authorieed Share Capital
1m,00,00,000 (As at March 31,2O20:100,00,00,tn0) Equity
Shares ofRs l0 each

1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00

Total 1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00

Issued, Subecdbed and Fully Paid-up
38,50,00,000 (As At lVarch 31,202O:38,50,00,ffn) F.quity Shares

ofRs 10 each
38,500.00 .i8,500.00

Total 38,500.00 38,s00.00

Ae at
March3l,202l

As at
March 31,2020

Partic ulars

Number of
Shares

Amount
(Rs in lacs)

Numbcr of Shares Amounl
(Rs in lacs)

[,)quity shares as at the beginning of the ycar

Sharcs issucd during thc ycru

38,50,00,000 38,500.00 38,50,00,000 38,500.00

liquitv sharcs as at thc cnd of thc ymr 38,50,00,000 38,500.00 38.50,00,000 38,500.00

bi



17.2 Details of ehares held the

Ae at
March3l,202l

As at
March 31, 2020

Number of
Shares

7o ofholding Number of Shares % of holding

Bueiness and Consumer
Private Limited *

38,50,00,000 100.00% 38,50,00,000 100.00%

rt As per the and
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneFrcial ownership of shares.

17.3 Details of shareholdere more than 570 shares in the

^ny,

afe below:
Name of the shareholder As at

March31,202l
As at

March 31,2020

Number of
Shares

% ofholding Number of Shares % of holding

ART Business ard Corsumer Fin""ii-
(India) Private Limited *

38,50,00,000 100.00% 38,50,00,000 100.00%

per and any,
shareholders regardrng benehcial iflterest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

18 Other

17.4 Terms/ rights attached to equiry shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote pet share' In the event of lquidation of the CompanS holders of equity shares will be entitled to ieceive remaining assets
of the Company after setdement of all the liabilities. The distriiution will b" in p.oportion to the number of equity shares held by
the shareholders.

For details of shates reserved for issue under the Employee Stock option Plan @Sop) of the Company, refer note 32

r d
9.

Particulars
As at

March 37,2021
As at

March31,2020

Special Reserve u/s 36$(vin) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Sharc based paymcnts l{esene

rcscn'c u/s 29C of I'hc N[{B Acg 1987 168.23

883.61

90.85

2,t45.96

168.23

484.06

66.72

1,202.60
otal

3,288.66

lliir t/t[A,

c

*

1,



ART Housing Finence (India) I imi16d

Notes foming pert of the Financial Satements for the yeer ended March 31, 2021
(Amount io INR lacs, unless otheruise stated)

19 Interest Income

on lncome
incremental costs) is included in Interest on loans on amortization basis.
Interest Income on Stage 3 Assets is recognised on the net crrying value (the gross carrying value as reduced by the impairment
allowance).

20 Fee and Commission Income

2l Net on Fair Yalue

22 Finance Costs

23 on Financial Instruments

24 benefits

9

Particulars For thc vear ended
Mxch3l,202l

For thc ycar ended
March 31,2020

On Assets measured at Cost:
Interest on Inans
Interest on banks

6,146.79

115.21
6,924.46

80.24
6,262.00 7,004,70

Pardculars For thc vear cndcd
March 31,2021

For the year endcd
March 31,2020

Other fee income charges 68.38

14.43
97.48

82.82 9V.48

Partic ulars For thc year cnded
lvltrch 31,2021

For the year endcd
Ivlarch 31, 2020

Net on instruments at value or loss
On trading portfolio

Investments in Mutual funds
Net

8'l.ll(r 185.03
on fair value 81.86 185.03

Fair Value changes:

Realised

Unrealised
81.58

0.28

158. r 3

26.90

81.86 185.03

at Amortised
on borrorvings

on l€ase

For the year ended
March 31,2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

1,086.81 1,763.30
.110.60

1,086.81 1,873.90

Particulars For thc vear cnded
Mrch3l,202l

For thc ycar cndcd
March 31, 2020

Ioans - Expected Gedit Loss
Other Receivables - Expected Credit Ioss

At Cost

advances and other receivables witten off

710.57

52.95

6.71

427.15

27.44

770.23 454.59

For the year cndcd
Mrtch3l,202l

For thc year ended
M,xch31,2020

Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Contribution to gratuity

wages and bonus

bascd payments to cmployecs

1,868.23

97.13

14,79

24.13

10.09

2,812.77

146.65

23.05

38.86

23.26
2,0r4.36 3,044.59

<1

=tus
tr\u

+
Y

Hcu c

* *

l'articulare

Particulars

V



ART Housing Finencc (Indie) I imilgd
Notes forming part of thc Financial Stetements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount io INR lacs, unless otheruise sated)

25 Other

25.1 Auditorrsrcmuneration

25.2 Social

Amomt the ended March 202t

A-mount the ended March 31, 2020

Patrry yeM to ls

ln25,3

9,V

March 3l, 2021

the verr
Ir{arch 31, 2020

year ended

on disposal of property, plmt aod equipment

& Water Chages

and chrges
Charges
professional

fees and expenses

and Taxes

fees, allowances and expenses

Communication expenses

Social Responsibility expenses

and business promotion expenses

aod conveyance

Expenses

and lVaintcnancc
Of6ce Expenses

37.16

10.68

130.66

26.62

25.45

129.52

7.09

3.26
17.44

40.66

1.92

32.70

2.20

34.67

0.27

51.92

15.57

197,16

47.97

30.40

137.85

9.83

3.93

5.58

63,26

0.55

19.83

18.90

86.18

13.23

68.34

Partic uIars For thc year ended
March 31, 2021

For the ycar ended
lvlarch 31, 2020

auditors

other seruices

reimbmement of

6.54

0.55

6.64

2.57

0.63

7.09 9.83

Particulars For the year ended
Illarch 31, 2021

For the yiai-ndld
March 31,2020

Amount incmed as included in Other
the yeararnount to be spent

32.70

32.70

19.8.3

19.83

Particulars In cash Yet to be paid Total

other thanOn
my asset

above 32.70 32.70
32.70 32.70

In Yet to be paid Total

other thanOn 19.83

of any asset

above
19.83

19.83

Particulars
For the year ended

M*rclt3l,202l
For the year ended

March 31, 2020

0.76 13.00

0.76 13.00

*

1

J
tu
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Particulars

19.83



ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 3lr202l
(Amount io INR lacs, unless otherwise stateQ

26 Eamings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion o[
all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares of the Company.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

27 Segment

The Company has only one reportable business segment, i.e. lending to borrowers, which have similar narure o[ products
and services, risk and retum proftle, qpe/class of customers and the nature o[ the regulatory envir6nment (which is banking), risks
and returns fot the purpose of Ind AS 108 on'Segment Reporting'specificd undcr secrion 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts] Rules,2014 . Accotdingly, the amounts appearing in the financial statements relate to the
Company's single business segment. The Company operates in a single geographical scgmcnr i.e. <lomestic.

28 Transfer of linancial assets that are derecognised in their entirety where the Company has continuing involvement
The Company has not transferred any assets that are derccognised in their entirety whcre thc Company continues to have

- 
continuinginvolvement.

29 Changes in tiabilities arising from financing activities
The Company does not have any
cash and cash equivalents.

m'*

activities which affect the capital and asset srnrcture of the Company without thc use o[

v
V

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For year ended
March 31, 2020

Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders

Computation of weighted average number of shares
- Basic (In Nos in lacs)

- Diluted (n Nos in lacs.)

Computation prolit

- Diluted Rs)

(c) Nominal value of equity share

to equity

(d) Earnings per share

- Basic (in Rs)

1,342.9'.t

0.35

0.35

10.00

3,850.00

3,850.00

562.49

10.00

0.15

0.14

3,850.00

3,921.22

=t!

ct\ Ug

Y
+
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial statements for the year ended March 3lrzozl
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

30.1 Statement of profit and loss
Net benefit recognized in the cost
Particulars For the year ended

Match3l,202l
For the year ended

March31,2020
Current service cost

Interest cost

on plan assets

et temeasutement / loss in the

12.22

3.45

(3.40)

21.49

2.32

(0.7s)

12.27 23.05

30.2 Remeasurement loss in other comprehensive income:

For the year ended
March3l,2020

30.3 Balance Sheet

Net defined benefit

30.4 ln value of the defined benefit

30 Employee Benefits Plan
Direct Benefit Plan
Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is eligible for
gratuity on cessation of employment and it is computed at 15 days salary flast drawn salary) for each completed y."r of ser'i.e
subject to such limit as prescribed by The Payment of Gratuity A ct, l972as amended from time to time.
Details for components of net benefits expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts
recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans based on actuarial valuatitn is given below:

I
=tu

+

tr

For the year ended
March3l,202l

(ga$i / loss on obligations arising from changes in financial

(g n) / loss on obligations arising from changes in experience

teturn on plan assets less interest on plan assets
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income for the year

amount incomeln other

assumptions

Remeasutement

(1.26)

0.48

Q6.ee)

c/ 18)

(33.6e)

0.s8

(t.54)

4.15

1.54

(1.84)

amount in other rncome (34.

Particulars For the year ended
Match 31,2021 March31,2020

the year ended

obligationdefined

assets

value

value of
43.13

63.79
in balance sheetdefined

0.76

Particulars For the year ended
March31,2027 March 31,2020

the year ended

Interest cost

Benefits paid during the year

obligations as at beginning the year

on

service cost

of defined
57.50

12.22

3.45

(3.53)

s1)

37.08

21.49

2.32

(3.38)
of the yearvalue of obligation as at 43.|i 57.50

I Hcu V

57.50

56.74

(20.61



ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 3lr2ozr
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

30.5 in fair value of asset:

30.6 The assumptions used in for the are shown below:

The discount rate is generally.based upon the matket yield available on the Government bonds at the reporting date with a term
that matches that of the liabilities and the salary growth rate takes account of inflation, seniority, p.o-o,ion and other relevant
factors on long term basis.

30.7 Proiected cash flow:

30.8 contribution to fund in the next

30.9 Sensitivity Analysis
actuarial for the determination of the deFrned benefit are discount rate and

Particulas For the year ended
Match3t,202l

For the year ended
March3l,2020

Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the year
Actual return on plan assets

Contdbutions

Benefits paid (3.s3)

56.7 4

10.59

12.05

(0.7e)

45.48

63.79 56.74

Particulars For the year ended
March3t,202l

For the year ended
March3l,2020

rate

Future salary increase rate

Mortality

verage past service (years)

verage age (years)

temaining working lives of employees (years)

rate

6.00%

5.00%

IALM2012-14
2.5 Years

32.8 Years

23 Years

20.00%

6.25%

5,00%o

t\LM2012-14
1.3 Years

31.5 Years

28.5 Years

20.000k

For the year ended
March3l,202l

For the year ended
March 31,2020

Expected benefits for yer. 2
Expected benefits for year 3

Expected benefits foryear 4

benefits for 10 and above

benefits for year 5

for year 1 2.02

2.19

2.42

2.46

2.38

31.66

1.21

2.40

3.18

3.48

3.43

43.80
Total 43.1i 57.50

contribution to in the next

Particulars For the year ended
March3l,202l

For the year ended
March3l,2020

21.65 44.62

htui/!Lr.t*

March3l,202l
the year ended

March3l,2020
the year ended

Effect of 7oh change in assumed discount rate

(b) Effect of 7oh change in assumed salary escalation rate
1 

o/o increase

170 decrease

Benefit on Current Assumptions

170 increase

17o decrease

43.13

5%

5%

60/o

60/o

6%o

57.50

+
n,

Hou

assets as at

Particulars
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March lt,zo2l
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

31 Employee Stock Option Schemes (ESOS)
ART Housing Finance (India) Limited had in the previous yeius announced and adopted ESOS schemes for its employees wherein each
option represents one equity share of the Company. Nomination aod Remuneratioo Committee constituted by the Board of Directors
administers each of the plans.

31.1 AHFL ESOS. MAYI2O17
The shareholders of the Company at their meeting dated May 29,2017 approved the 'AAHFL ESOP - MAY2O17' scheme consisting of
2,500,000 stock options represeoting 2,500,000 frrlly paid up equity shares of Rs 10 each of the Company to be issued in one or more
tranches to eligible employees of the Company. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee constiruted by the Board of Directors
of the Company has, at its meeting held on dated May 29,2017, November 3,201,7 ard, December 8,2077, granted, following the
intrinsic method of accounting as is prescribed in the Guidance Note issued by the Instirute of Chartered Accountants of India on
Accounting for Employees Share Based Payments ('the Guidelines'). However, the Company has increased the overall limit of stock
options up to 5,000,000 under the said scheme oo recornmendations of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of share
holders vide their general meeting held on Ap.il 4 2018. As the options have been granted at intrinsic value, there is no employee stock
compensation exPeose on account of the same. These options vest u'ith effect from the fust vesting date i.e. May 29,2}lg, whereby the
options vest on each vesting date as per the vesting schedule provided in the Scheme.

Particulars AHFL ESOS - MAYI2O17
Exercise price exerclse Dflce shall be such price as determined by the Board of Directors from time to

not less than the face value of a share of the as on date ofgrant.
Vesting conditions On expiry of one year- 070 options granted

Oo expiry of two year- 200lo of options granted
On expiry of three year- 200/o of options granted
On expiry of four year- 300/o of options granted
On of five 30ok of

N{aximum term of options granted 5 years from thc dete ofvesting
Vesting requirements Continued at the date

period The exercise period shall be determined by the Board of Dr."cto.s in co.,..ortiu- *th ,h.
liquidity event.

Formula Calculation is based on fair value method

31.2 AHFL ESOS - MAYI2O19
The shareholders of the Company at their meetiog dated May 9,2079 approved the 'AAHFL ESOP - MAY2019' scheme consisting of
5,000'000 stock options representing 5,000,000 fuUy paid up equity shares of Rs 10 each of the Company to be issued in one or more
tranches to eligible employees of the Company & its Subsidiary/ Holding Company. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
constituted by the Board of Directors of the Compaoy has also at its meeting held on dated May 6, 2019 granted the same, following the
intrinsic method of accounting as is prescribed in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accoufltants of India on
Accounting for Employees Share Based Payments ("the Guidelines'). As the options have been granted at intrinsic value, there is no
emPloyee stock compensation expense on account of the same. These options vest urith effect from the 6rst vesting date i.e. May 29,
2020, whereby the options vest oo each vesting date as per the vesting schedule provided in the Scheme.

movement the AHFL ESOS. MAY'20I7 AHFL ESOS - MAY'2019

u)

(ii)

(*)
(i")
(")

("r)

("t1)

$
<\

a, *
f.)

I

Particulars AHFL ESOS - MAY'2019
Exercise price exercise price be such price as determined by the Board of Directors from time to time,

not less than the face value of a share of the as on date of
Vesting cooditions On expiry of one year- 2070 of options granted

On expiry of two year- 2070 of options granted
Oo expiry of three year- 30oh of options granted
On expiry of four year- 3070 of options granted

Maximum term of options Eranted
Vesting requirements

4 from the date of
at the date

Exercise period The exercise period determined by the Board of in consordum with the
event,

Pricing Formula Calculation is based on fair value method

Particulars For the year
ended March

31,2021

For the year
ended March

31,2020

For the year
ended March

3t,2021

For the year
ended March

3L,2020
No. of options outstanding at the beginning of the yer
No. of options granted during the year
No. of options forfeited/lapsed durhg the year
No. of options exercised during the year

ofoptions outstanding at the end ofthe year
of stock exercisable at the end of the yct.

No.
N\

42,72,000

(31,07,s00)

11,64,500

4

45,90,000

3,94,000

0,12,000)

42-72.000

25,26,500

(1 8,13,000)

7,13,500 25,26,500

26,31,000

(1,04,s00)

\{ou

lfi
*
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 3l,2OZl
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherrrise sated)

Disclosue under "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development ('MSMED,) Act,2006,t
Based on the intimation received by the Company, some of the suppliers have confirmed to be registered under "The Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development (a,ISMED) .Lct,2006". Accordingly, the disclosues relating ro amounrs
unpaid as at the year ended together with interest pud /payable are furnished below:

33 liabilities and commitments

Particulars As at
March 31,2021

As at
March31,2020

amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the of the year 1.37 3.63

interest due remaining unpaid to as at the end of the yer

The amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16, along the amount
pa).rnent made to the supplier beyond the appointed day dudng the year

amount of mterest due and for the year of delay 1n payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed d^y during the year) but without

the lnterest specified under this

amount of interest the year and femalrung unpaid at the end of
the yeat

amount of fruther interest remaining due and evefl ln the succeeding
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small

enterprise for the pqpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micto, Small and Medium Ente{prise Development Act,2006

Particulars As at
March 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

(a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts

@) Disputed Income Tax Demands not provided for

Contingent liabilities

140.85 141.05

(c) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account

(d) Loan Commitments towards partly disbursed loans

provided for

2,050.49 3,473.49

.f1

+

I
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2021

(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

34 Disclosures as required by Ind AS 116 - Leases are stated below:

34.1 Lease movement

34.2 Amounts in the Statement of Profit & Loss

34.3 Future Lease Cash Outllow for all leased assets:

34.4 of Lease as at 31 Match?02l:

V

As at
March 3L,2021

As at

March 31,2020
Particulars

96.20

Q40.42)
(442.27)

804.70

944.39

4.52

110.60

(254.81)

Opening Balance

Adiustment on initial application of Ind AS-116 'Leases' at April 1,2079

Addition during the year

Interest on Lease Liability

Deletjon during the year

Lease rental payment

804.70Balance as on 31 March202l 278.20

As at
March 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

Particulars

Asset wise depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

Interest expense (included in finance cost)

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in rent expenses)

189.02

(14.43)

35.77

151.41.

110.60

31.84

Total 210.36 293.85

Particulars As at
March 31,2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later than five years

Later than five years

Impact of discounting and other adiustments

136.04

108.50

(26.34)

247.61

799.18

(242.0e)

Total 218.20 804.70

As at

March 31,2020
Particulars As at

March 31,2027

Within l Year

Within 2 Years

Within 3 Yeas

After 3 Years

1 15.13

103.07

155.97

165.94

187.94

294.86

Total 2t8.20 804.70

t\o
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes foming part of the Financiel Statemcnts for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Asout in INR lacs, uless otieruise sated)

35 Disclosure of transactions with releted parties as rcquired by Ind AS 24

Transactions with related the

A

D

Holding Company

Parcnt ofthe Holding Company

Ultimate Holding Company

Subsidiary Company

ART Business md Consumer Finmce (India) Ptimte Limited

ART Capital (odia) Primte Limited

Yes Capital (ndia) Printe Limited

ART Distribution (India) Priwte Limited

Key maaagement peronnel (KMP) Arind Hali, Mmaging Director md Chief Executive Offrcer (UptoMay N)O?-l)
Rakhe Kapor Tmdon, Director (Jpto August 6B019)

Raj Vikash Vem, Nm Exeotive and Non Independent Director (Upto April 301020)

Padeep Kmr, Noo Executive md Non Independent Director ()gtoMay 21pO20)

Mmish Singh, Wholetime Director aod CEO (From May 20,X20 toMtch01fi21)
PokaiJain, Chief Finmcial Offrcer (UptoMty 31p0?-0)

VipinJain, Chief Fiamcial Of6cet (FrcmJuly 011020)

VipinJain, Mmaging Director & CEO (Irom March 02p021)
Rahul Krmr Pmdey, Indepmdent Drectot @tomMay 22,2020)
Atu[ Hremukhoi Mehta, Independent Drector (From May 09, 2020)

Shrenik Suresh Shah, Independent Drector (FromJuly 16, 2020)

Ritika Bhati4 Whole Time Director (FrcmMay @,2A?0) ud Compuy Secteary
Briiesh Kwr Gupta Director (Upto May N,20m)
Lt. Genenl Sulhej Pal Kochhar Director (Upto May 02, 2020)

Entcrprises that dircctly or indirectly are under
commotr contrcl and with whom transactions arc
done during the year

ART Capital Advircry (ndia) Printe Limited
DOIT Urbm Yentutes (India) Pdnte Limited
RAVI Rmewable Enetgy & Lighting lodia Private Limited
Rurbm Agri Vennrres India Pdute Limited

RAVI Integnted bgistics (India) Priwte Limited

RAVI Horticulture (ndu) Pw Ltd

Post Employment Benefrt Plans ART Housiog Finance (India) Ltd. Employee's Gauity Trust

For the year ended
March 31,2021

For the year ended
March 3L,2020

Particulam Nature of transaction

Transaction
value

Outstatrding
amount

Transaction
valuc

Outstanding
amount

IGy managemcnt prcnonnel

Arind Hali
Mmish Siogh

Ritika Sati

VipinJaio

PmkaiJaio

Btiiesh KmGupta
Lt Gmenl Sukhmi Pal Kehhu
Anita Kapw
Anrl HromukhaiMehta
Rahul Kumr Pmdey

Shrmrt Suesh Shah

Other entities in which key management pereonnel or their
relative has significant inlluencc

Ambience Hospitality Mmagemeot Ptinte Limited

AdityaKhmm

ART Capial Advircry (ndie) Printe Limited

Remuoention paid

Remuneotioo paid

Remuneation paid

Remuention paid

Remunemtion paid

Sittrng Fee paid

Siniog Fee paid

Sittrng Fee prud

Sittiag Fee paid

Sitting Fee paid

Sitting Fee paid

Expenses Reinbusement

Inter-corponte deposits received

Intet-corpoate deposis repaid

Ioterest paid

Expenses paid

26.21

103.94

30.36

45.00

17.28

1.37

0-44

5.67

5.8
4.80

14.77

2,200.00

22N.N
53.43

1.80

1.90

1.q

0.13

n3.24

16.83

108.50

+

Hou
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ART Housing Finance (ndia) Limitcd
Notes foming part of the Financiel Strtements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Amouot in INR lacs, uless otheuise sated)

Note:
The temueadon to the key ruagerial pemnnel dws not include the provision rode for gratuity, re it is detemiaed on u actuadal buis for the Compmy as a
whole.

E

VW
9-

Particulan Naturc of transaction For the year cnded
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Tmnsaction
value

Outstanding
amount

Tmnsaction
value

Ourstanding
amount

DOIT Utbm Yentutes (India) Primte Limited

RAVI Renewable Energ & Lrghtrng India Printe Limited

Rurban Agi Ventures India Primte Limited

Post emplolment bene fit entity
ART Housing Finmce (odia) Ltd. Employee's Gauity Trust

Inter-corponte deposits repaid

Interest paid

Expeoses reimbuammt received

Expenses reimbursement received

Gotuity contributioo

8,650.00

115.42

11.56

3.85

45..+8

\{ru

*
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended Match 31, 2021

(Amount in INR lrcs, unless otherwise stated)

36 Fair value measuremetrt

Set out below, is a comparison by category of the Company's Enancial instruments

36,1 Financialinstnrments Assetg and Financial

36.2 ValuationPrinciples
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabiliry in an orderly transaction in the principal (or
most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that
price is dtectly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.

36.3 Fairvaluehierarchy
In order to show how fair values have been derived, frnancial instruments are classifred based on a hierarchy ofvaluation techniques.
Fair value ofthe financial instruments is classihed in various fair value hierarchies based on the following three lcvels:

I*vel l: Valuation based on quoted market price: financial instluments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets
that the company can acoess at the measurement date.

Level2: Valuation using observ"able inputs: Frnancial instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all
significant inputs ate observable.

I*vel 3: Valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: Frnancial instruments valued using valuation techniques where one
or mote of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the fair value is determined using generally accepted pricing
models based on a analysis, with the most significaot inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparty,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company detemines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fait value measurement as a whole) at the end ofeach reponing year.

Financial aeeet8 aod liabilitiee measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

36.3.2 Fair value of financial instnrments not measured at fair value as at:

36.3.7

v

Match3l,202l March 31,2020Particulars

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised
Cost

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised
Cost

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank Balance othe! than above

Loans

Investments

Other Financial assets

107.47

2,118.90

1,043.86

40,888.54

5.00

479.21

2,308.34

3,991.31

1,191,57

50,320.57

5.00

528.63

s6,037.08Total 107.47 44,535.51 2,308.34

Financial Liabilitieg
Trade Payables

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

Other financial liabilities

19.31

3,492.32

422.70 1,505.65

22.89

1 8,800.1 7

Total 3,934.33 20,328.71

Particulars March3l,202l March37,2020
Level-1 l*vel-2 I.evel-3 Level-1 l*vel-Z Level-3

Investments in Mutual funds 107.47 2,308.34

March3l,202l March 31, 2020Particulam

lcvel-1 l*vel-2 Level-3 Level-1 Level-2 Level-3
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Other bank balances

Loans

Investments

Other Financial assets

2,118.90

1,043.86

.+0,888.54

5.00

479.21

3,991.31

1,191.57

50,320.57

5.00

528.63

Total 3,162.76 47,372.75 5,182.88 50,854.20

Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

Other financial liabilities

19.31

3,492.32

422.70

22.89

1 8,800.1 7

1,505.65

Total 3,934.33 20,328.77

)
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notee forming part of the Finaacial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Amount in INR lacs, unless otheruise stated)

37 Capial Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital man4gement, capital includes issued equity capital, Securities premium and all other equity

reseryes attributable to the equity holders ofthe Company net ofintangible assets. The primary objective ofthe Company's capital

management is safety and security of share capitd and maximize the shareholder value'

The Company man4ges its capital structure in light ofchanges in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.

The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by net worth. The Company's policy is to keep the

gearing ratio at reasonable level of 6-8 times in imminent year while the Housing Finance Companies Q.Jational Housing Baok)

Directions, 2010 (the 'NHB Directions') curendy permits IIFCs to borrow up to 14 times of their net owned funds (NOF'). The

Company includes with in debt, its all interest bearing loans and borrowings.

Debt to net worth ratio
Particulare As at

}fidttch3l,2021
As at

Marcb3l,2020

Debts

Net worth

Debt to net worth (in times)

3,492.32

41,788.66

0.08

1 8,800.1 7

44,421.61

0.47

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets

financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that dehne capital structure requirements. Breaches in

meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to imediately call loans and bocowings. There have been no breaches in the

financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year.

The Company's Principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to

finance the company's operations, At the other hand company's Principal financial assets include loans and cash and cash equivalents

that derive direcdy from its operations.

9,
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ART Housing Finance (India) Umited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 3lr202l
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

38 Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Risk Management Framework
The Company's Principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance

the Company's opentions. At the other hand company's Principal financial assets include loans and cash and cash equivalents that

derive direcdy ftom its operations.

As a lending institution, Company is exposed to various risks that are related to lending business and operating environment. 'I'he

Principal Oblective in Company's risk management processes is to measure and monitor the various risks that Company is subiect to

and to follow policies and procedures to address such risks. Company 's risk management framework is driven by Board and its

subcommittees including the Audit Committee, the Asset Liability Management Committee, fusk Management Committee, and IT
Strategy Committee. Company gives due importance to prudent lending practices and have implemeoted suitable measures for risk

mitigation, which include verification of credit history from credit information bureaus, personal verification of a customer's business

and tesidence, technical and legal verifications, conservative loan to value, and required term cover for insurance. The major rypes of
risk Company face in businesses are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest tate risk.

A summary of the maior risks faced by the Company, its measurement, monitoring and management are described as under:

Executive
governance

Measurement, monitoring and management of riskNature of
risk

Arising from

Liquidity and

funding risk

Liquidity risk arises from mismatches

in the timing of cash flows.
Funding risk arises due to
- inability to raise incremental

borrowings to fund business

requirement
- when long term assets canflot be

funded at the expected term resulting
in cashflow mismatches;

- amidst volatile market conditions
impacting sourcing of funds ftom
banks and money markets

Board appointed

Asset Liability
Committee
(ALCO)

Liquidity and funding risk is:

- measured by identifring gaps in the structural and dynamic

liquidity statements.

- assessment of incremental borrowings required for the

Company's business plan in line with prevailing market

conditions.
- monitored by assessment of the gap between available

liquidity and the near term liabilities given current market

liquidity conditions and coostant calibration ofsources of
funds in line
- managed by the Company's treasury team under the

guidance of ALCO through various means like liquidity
buffers, maintaining cash reserves, sourcing of long tcrm

funds, positive asset liability mismatch, keeping strong

pipeline ofsanctions and approvals from banks.

Credit Risk Credit risk is the risk of financial loss

arising out of a customet or
couoterparty failing to meet their
repayment obligations to
the Company

Board appointed
tusk
Management

Committee

Credit risk is:

- measured as the amount at risk due to repayment default of
a customer or counterparty to the company. various metrics

such as EMI default rate, overdue position, collectioo

efficiency, customers non-performing loans etc. are used as

leading indicators to assess credit risk.

- monitored by Risk management committee using level of
credit exposures, portfolio monitoring, and geographic,

customer and portfolio concentration risks

- managed by a robust control framework by the risk

department which continuously align credit policies, obtaining

extemal data from credit bureaus and reviews of portfolios
and delinquencies by senior and middle management team

comprising of risk, analytics, collection

and fraud containment along with business. The same is

periodically reviewed by the Board appointed risk

managernent committee.

Interest Rate

Risk
Interest rate risk stems from
rnovements in market factors, such

as interest rates, credit spreads which
impacts investrnents, income and

the value of portfolios.

Board appointed
Asset Liability
Committee
(ALCo)

I

Ioterest rate risk is:

- measured by identifring gaps in the interest rate sensitivity
statements

- monitored by assessment of probable impacts of interest

rate sensitivities change in interest rates for assets and

liabilities
- managed by the Company's treasury team under the

,f
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ART Housing Finance (India) Timited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in NR lacs, unless othevise stated)

38.1 Liquidity and fundiag risk
The Company's ALCO monitors asset l.iability mismatches to ensure there ue no imbalances or excess.ive concentradons on either
side of the balance sheet.

The Company continuously monitors liquidity in the mrket; and as a part of its ALCO strategy, it maintains a liquidiry buffcr
managed by an actilre investment desk to reduce this risk.

The Company maintains a judicious mlx ofequity and borrowings. The Company continues to diversify its sources of borrowings with
an emphasis on longer tenor borrowings. This strategy ofbalancing vried sources of funds and long tenor borrowings has helped the
Company maintain a healthy asset liability position.

38.1.1 The table below summrises the maturity proile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial liabilities.
38.1.1.1 of Financial liabilities

38.1,1.2 Maturity analysis of esscts and liabilities

The table below shom an analpis ofassets and liabilities anallsed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

3l-Mar-21 31-Mar-20Particulare

!(rithin 12

motrths
After 12

months
Total Within l2

months
After 12

months
Total

Payables

Other Financial Liabilities

500.00

19.31

319.63

2,992.32

103.07

3,492.32

19.31

422.70

3,362.28

22.89

856.92

15,437.89

648.73

1 8,800.1 7

22.89

1,505.65
Total 838.94 3,095.39 3,934.33 4,242.09 16,086.62 20,328.7t

3l-Mar-21 31-Mar-20Particulars

Within 12

months
Aftet 12

months
Total Within 12

months
After 12

months
Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balance other than above

Loans

Invesknents

Other Enancial assets

Non-frnanciel Assets

Cment tax ssets (Net)

Deferred tax assers (Net)

Property, plant and equipment

Other intangible assets

Right-of-use assets

Other non-Enancial msets

2,1 18.90

1,043.86

2,087.17

107.47

431.51

16.71

166.66

38,801.37

5.00

47.70

321.04

325.17

139.29

223.75

2,118.90

1,043.86

40,888.54

112.47

479.21

16.71

121.04

325.17

138.29

223.75

166.66

3,991.31

1,191.57

3,457.72

2,308.34

48!.76

788.1 0

75.45

46,862.85

5.00

44.87

158.05

594.80

202.11)

797,50

3,991.31

1,191.57

50,320.57

2,313.34

528.63

75.45

158.05

594.80

202.78

797.50

788.10

Total Assets 5,972.28 39,862.32 45,834.60 12,296.25 48,665.85 60,962.10

LIABILITIES
Financial r'iabilities

Payables

(I)Trade Payables

(i) total outstanding dues MSME

(ii) toal outstanding dues of
creditors other than MSME

Borowings (other than Debt
securities)

Other fi nancial liabilities

Non-fi nancial liabilities
Provisions

Other non-Enancial liabilities

1.37

17.94

500.00

319.63

Q0.67)
132.28

2,992.32

103.07

1.31

17.94

3,492.32

422.70

(20.67)

132.28

3,362.28

856.92

3.63

19.26

0.76

211.02

15,437.89

648.71

18,800.17

1,505.65

3.63

19,26

0.76

211.02
Total liabilities 950.55 3,095.39 4,045.94 4,453.87 16,086.62 20,540.49

Net 5,02t.73 36,766.93 41,788.66 7,842.38 32,579.23 40,421.6t
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Ap1 llqusing Fiaance (India) T imited
Notes forming part of the Financial Satements for the year ended March 31,2021
(Amount in INR lacs, unless othemise sated)

38.1'1.3 Analysis of financial Assets and Liabilities by remeiniag conu.ctual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity pro6le of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial assets and labilities at each
year end. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cmh flow. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significmt:

3l-Mar-21 3l-Mat-20Contractual maturities of Assets
and Liabilities Within 12

months
After 12

months
Total Within 12

months
Altet 12

months
Total

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalens

Bank balance other than above

Ioans

InYestrnents

Other Enancial assets

2,118.90

1,043.86

2,087.17

107.47

431.51

38,801.37

5.00

47.70

2,118.90

1,043.86

40,888.54

112.47

479.21

3,991.31

1,191.57

3,457.72

2,308.34

483.76

46,862.85

5.00

44.87

3,991.31

1,191.57

50,320.57

2,313.34

528.63

Total Financial Assets 5,788.91 38,854.07 44,642.98 1,432.70 46,9t2.72 58,345.42

LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Payables

(I)Trade Payables

$ toMSMEs
(i) to other than MSMEs

Borowings (other than Debt
secuities)

Other Enancial liabilities 319.63

1.37

17.94

500.00 2,992.32

103.07

1.37

17.94

3,492.32

422.70 856.92

3.63

19.26

3,362.28 15,437.89

648.73

3.63

19.26

18,800.1 7

1,505.65

liabilitiesTotal

Net 35'

3,095.39 4,242.09

7,t90.61

,71

38,016.71
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2021
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise sated)

38.2 Credit risk
Ctedit Risk adses from the risk of loss that may occur ftom the default of Company's customers under loan agreements. Customer defaults and
inadequate collatetal may lead to higher credit impaired assets. Company address credit risks by using a set of credit norms and policies, which are
approved by Boatd and backed by analytics and technologr. Company has implemented a strucrured and standardized credit approval process,
including customer selection criteria, comprehensive credit risk assessment and cash flow analysis, which encompasses analysis of relevant
quantitative and qualitative information to ascertain the ctedit worthiness of a potential customer. Actual credit exposures, credit limits and asset
quality ale tegulady monitored and analysed at vatious levels. Company has created a robust credit assessment and underwriting practice that
enables to fairly price cedit risks.

The company has implemented a four prong system of credit assessrnent comprising underwriting, legal assessments, technical assessrnents and a
fraud/risk containment unit.

The Company's ctedit of6cers evaluate credit ptoposals on the basis of active credit policies as on the date of approval. The criteria typically
include factors such as the borowet's income & obligations, the loan-to-value ratio and demographic parameters subject to regulatory g.uaeUnes.
Any deviations need to be approved at the designated levels. The various process controls such as PAN Number Check, CERSAi database
scrubbing Ctedit Bureau Report analysis ate undertaken prior to apptoval of a loan. In addition Extemal agencies such as 6eld investigation
agencies facilitate a comprehensive due diligence process including visits to offices and homes.

The Company analyses the portfolio perfotrnance of each product segment regulady, and use these as inputs in revising our product p(ograms,
target market definitions and ctedit assessment criteria to meet our twin obiectives of combining volume growth and maintenanc. of astit qLlity.

38.2.1 Classification offinancial assets under various stages
The Company classiEes its financial assets in three stages having the following charactcristics:

Stage 1: Loanswith DPD between 0-30 days are classified as Stage 1. These are unimpaired and without significant increase in credit risk and 12
month ECL is recognised on these loans.

Stage 2: Loans with DPD between 31-90 days are classified as Stage 2.Therc is a significant increase in credit risk and lifetime ECI- is recognised
on these loans,

Stage 3: Loans with DPD > 90 days are classified as Stage 3. There is a objective evidence of impairment, and are therefore consiclered t6 be rn
default or otherq/ise credit impaired and lifetime ECL is recognised on these loans.

Unless identified at an earlier stage, all Frnancial assets are deemed to have suffered a sigrrificant increase in credit risk when they are 30 days past
due (DPD) and are accordingly transferred from stage 1 to stage 2. For stage 1 an ECL allowance is calculated based on a 12-month probabiliry
of default (?D). For stage 2 and 3 assets a time ECL is calculated based on a lifetime PD.

38.2.2 Impairment Loss Allowance - Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is a calculation of the present value of the amount expected not to be recovered on a financial asset, for financial
reporting purposes. Credit risk is the potential that the obligor and counterparty will fail to meet its financial obligations to the lender. This
tequkes an effective assessment and management of the credit risk at both indiviclual and portfolio level.

The key components of Credit fusk assessment are as below alongwith with an adjustment considcring the forward macro economic scenan():
- Probability of Default (?D): represents the likelihood of default over a defined time horizon.
- Exposute at Default @,AD): tepresents the gross exposure at the time of default.
- Loss Given Default (LGD): represents the proportion of EAD that is likely loss post-tlcfault.

The definition ofdefault is taken as more than 90 days past due for all individual and othcr loans.

EAD is the total amount outstanding including interest due as on the reporting datc.
The ECL is computed as a product of PD, LGD and EAD.

Financial instruments other than loans were subiected to simplfied ECL approach AS 109 - 'Financial instruments'and accordingly
were not subiect to sensitivity of furure economic conditions.

q/a v *
*
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 3lr 202l

(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

38.2,3 The table below summarises the gross carrying values and the associated allowance for expected credit loss (F)CL) stage wise for loan portfolio:

Particulars Match3L,202L March31,2020

Stage 1
' 

Siage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1
' 

Stage 2 | Stage 3

Gross carrying value

Allowance for ECL
ECL coverage ratio

38,571.57

173.31

0.45%

2,518.55

667.51

26.50%

1,066.05

426.82

40.04"/o

50,302.90

424.53

0.8404

425.941

e0.63 I

21.28%l

148.80

41.91

28.17%

38.3 Analysis of risk concentration
The Company's concentrations of risk are managed based on Lorn to value (I-T! segregation, loan products, custorner types as well as

geographical sptead. The following tables strztify credit exposutes ftom housing and other loans to customers by tange of loan-to-value (L1!
tatio and customer types. LTV is calcr.rlated as the ratio of gross amount of the loan to the value of the collateral. The value of the collateral for

housing and othet loans is based on collateal value at otigination.

38.3.1 LTV wise bifurcation;
Particulars Match3l,202l Mztch 37,2020

LTVbucket Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage I Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

0%40%
41%-60%

61%-80%

More Than 800%

9,038.67

12,995.16

14,640.57

1,897.17

1,525.26

368.24

538.65

86.40

163.58

190.48

501,.27

210.12

10,727.52

13,554.48

15,680.49

2,193.69

7,585.69

10,152.92

16,395.21

16,169.09

76.04

62.94

162.28

124.68

42.04

42.90

11.75

52.11

7,703.71

10,258.76

16,569.23

16,345.88

Grand Total 38,572.17 2,518.55 1,065.45 42,156.77 50,302.91 425.94 148.80 50,877.64

38.3.2 Customer
March31,2020Particulars March31,2027

Staee 2 Stase 3 Total Stage I Stage 2 Stage 3 TotalLTV bucket Stage 1

140.34

608.07

15,298.39

20,695.04

18,793.37

23,504.63

5.36

255.00

7.13

80.69

18,805.86

23,840.32

HL - Salaried

HL - Self Employed

14,834.05

18,628.03

324.00

7,458.94

42,646.1833,462.08 t182,93 748.42 35,993.43 42,298.00 260.36 87.82HLTotal

5.83

729.79

4.31

31,2.72

491.07

5,671.66

708.53

7,296.38 1 65.58

4.23

56.7 4

712.7 6

7,518.70

NHL - Salaried

NHL - Self Employed

480.93

4,629.16

8,231.46NHLTotal 5,110.09 735.62 3r7.03 6,162.74 8,004.91 165.58 60.97

50,302.91 425.94 148.80 50,877.64Total HL + NHL 38,572.17 2,518.55 1,065.45 42,L56.fi
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ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes forming pan of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2021

(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

38.4 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or frrture cash flows of a financial instrument will flucruate because of changes in market factors.

Such changes in the values of frnancial instruments may result from changes in the interest rates, credit, tiquidiry and other market

changes. The Company's eryosure to market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk,

38.4.1 Interest Rate Risk
The company is subiect to interest rate risk, primarily since it lends to customers at rates and for maturity years thxt may differ from
funding sources. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond control, including the monetary poLicies of the Reserve Bank of
India" deregulation of the financial sector in India, domestic and intemational economic and political conditions, inflation and other
factots. In order to manage interest rate risk, the company seek to optimize borrowing profile between short-term and long-term loans.

The company adopts funding strategies to ensure diversifred resource-raising options to minimize cost and maximize stability of funds.

Assets rnd liabilities are categorized into various time buckets based on their maturities and Asset Liabiliry Management Committee
supervise an interest rate sensitivity teport periodically for assessment of interest rate risks.

Due to the very nature of housing finance, the company is exposed to moderate to higher Interest Rate fusk. This risk has a major impact
on the balance sheet as well as the income statemeflt of the company. Interest Rate Risk arises due to:

i) Changes in Regulatory or Market Conditions affecting the interest rates

ii) Short term volatility
iii) Prepayment risk translating into a reinvestment risk
iv) Real interest rate risk.

In short run, change in interest rate affects Company's eamings (measured by NII or NIN[) and in long run it affects lUarket Value of
Equity (ltd\rE) or net worth. It is essential for the company to not only quanti$ the interest rare risk but also to manage it proactively.

The company mitigates is interest rate risk by keeping a balanced portfolio of fxed and variable rate loans and borrowings. Further
company carries out maturity gap analysis at quarterly intervals to quantifr the risk.

38.4.2 Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed intemal processes, people and system or from extemal events.
Operational risk is associated with human error, system failures and inadequate procedues and controls. It is the risk ofloss arising from
the potential that inadequate information system; technolog, failures, breaches in intemal controls, fraud, unforeseen catastrophes, o(
other operational problems may tesult in unexpected losses ot reputation problems. Operational risk exists in all products and business
activities. The Company recognizes that operational risk event types that have the potential to result in substantial losses includes Intemal
fraud Extemal fraud, employment practices and worL?lace safety, clients, products and business practices, business disruption and
system failutes, damage to physical assets, and Enally execution, delivery and process management. The Company cannot expect to
eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavours to manage these risla through a conttol framework and by monitoring and responding to
potential risla. Controls include effective segegation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and
assessment processes, such as the use of intemal audit.

39 Impact of COYID-l9
COVID -19 pandemic had led to significant decrease in global and local economic activites, which may persist. Company has used the
principles ofprudence to provide for the impact ofpandemic on the fnancial staternent specifically while assessing the expected credit
loss on furancial assets by applying managernent overlays, approved by Board of Directors. This has resulted in an additional provision of
Rs. 534 lacs (Previous Yeac Rs. 279 la.cs). The extent to which COVID-19 pandemic, including the currenr "Second lUave" that has

significantly inctease the number of caes in India, will continue to impact t}re company's operations and financial metrics will depend on
future developments, which are highly uncertain.
Further, in accordance with the RBI guidelines relating to COVID 19 Regulatory Package dated Mxch 27,2020 and April 17, 2020, the
Company has granted moratodum on the payment of all instalments and/or interest, as applicable, falling due between March 1, 2O2O md
August 31, 2020 to il, eligible borrowers. For all such accounts where the moratorium is granted, the prudential assets classiFrcation shall
remain stand-still during the moratorium period (i.e. the number of days past due shall exclude the moratorium period for the purposes of
asset classification under Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms).
The company has not invoked or implemented resolution plan under the "Resolution Framework for the COVID-l9 related Stress" as

per RBI Ckcular dated August 6,2020 for any ofits loan accounts.

39.1 InAccordancewiththeinstructionsofRBlCircularno.W[/2021-22/17IDOR.STR.REC.4/21.04.048/2027-22dttedApil07,2021,
the HFC shall shall refund /adjust "interest on interest" to all borrowers including those who had availed of working capital facilities
during the moratorium period, irrespective ofwhether moratorium had been fully or partially availed, or not availed. Pursuant to these

instructions, the methodologr for calculation ofthe amount ofsuch "interest on interest" has been recently circulated by the Indian
Banking Assocation (IBA). The company is in the process of suitably implementing this methodologr and has creared a liabiliry of 45.23

the pro6t for the year ended March 31, 2021."ff' the same fromIt\ou
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ART Housing Finmce (India) Limited

Notes forming put of the Financial Statements for the yeer cnded M ztch 3L, 2021

(Amout io INR lacs, unless otheuise stated)

40 Additional infomtion required in tm of Muta Diratim - Non-Ban&ing Finmcial Company - Houshg Fimnce Company (Reswe
Bmk) Directions, 2021 DORFIN.HFC.CC.No.120I03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17,2021 have been prepared oo the basis of
previous Indim GAAP md is givm below:

40.1

Prticulars As at
March 31, 2021

A! at
March 31, 2020

(i) Capital to Risk Asset Ratio - CRAR f/o)
(Q CRAR-Tier I Capial (o/o)

(ii) CRAR-Tier II Capital f/")
(iv) Amount of subordimted debt mised a Tier- II Capital

(v) Amomt nised by issue of Perpemal Debt Iostrurents

18,1..32%

183.730/o

0.59%

Nil
Nil

128.070/0

t27.1Uh

0.98%

Nit

Nit

40.2 Reserye fund under section 29C of National Bank 1987

The Compmy hm not dnm my mout ftom Statutory Rererye crated u/s 29C of the National Housing Ban[ Act, 1987 duriog the

ment yw md previous yru.

40.3 Investrnents

Particulus As at
March 31,2021

As .t
March 31, 2020

Balmce at thc beginning of thc yeu
a) Satutory reseoe uda rectim 29C of the National Houing Bank Acg 1987

b) Ammt of special rewe unds wtion 36(1)(viif of Incm-tax Act, I 961 takfl
into accomt for thc pulpores of statutory reserve udet Section 29C of the NHB Act,
1987

c) Totel
Addition/ epproprietion/ witbdraml duing the yeu
Add:

a) Ammt tmsfmd mder wtion 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

b) Arcmt of spcial rewe mds *ction 36(1)(viif of Incore-tax Act, 1961 aten
ioto accout for the purpo*s of sanrtory resre unds Section 29C of the NHB Act,
1987

kss:
a) Amout appropdated ftom the statutory rewe mder section 29C of the NHB Act,
1987

b) Arcunt withdown &om the special rerere u/s 36(1)(viif of Incorc-tax
Act, 1961 hken into eccomt which h$ bcen talen into account for the putpose of
provision u,/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Belmce et thc end of drc ycr
a) Statutory reseoe u/s 29C of the Netioqal Housiog Bok Act, I 987

b) Arcunt of special resere u/s 36(1)(viilof Income -tax Act, 1961 taken into accomt
for the purpo*s of satutory rewe mdc Section 29C of the NHB Acq 1987

168.23

484.06

168.23

359.92

652.29 528.15

399.55

Nil

Nil

168.23

883.61

12{,11

Nil

Nil

168.23

484.06

c) Totel 1,0s1.84 652.29

x t'; ;r' XAI

C

*

As

March 31, March 31,

As

Gross lzlue of inwsurents

(a) In India

(b) Outside India

r Prcvision for depreciation

(a) In India
(b) Outside India

of provisions held towrds depreciation on investments

(ii) kss: Wrire-off ,/ written-back of excess provisions

balance

the year

Net mlue of iovestsnents

(a) In India

@) Outside India

(i) Opening balance

(ir) Add: Provisioos made duting the yzu

Nil
Nil

Nit

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
172.1

Nit

Nil

Nit
Nil
Nit

Nil

2,11

Nit

2,313.31

Nil
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ART Housing Finuce (India) Umited
Notes foming prt of the Finmcial Statements for the ycer eaded March 3l' 2021

(Amout io INR lacs, unless otheui* sated)

40,4 Derivatives

40.4.1 Fomard Rate Interest Rete

Note: are no

40.4.2 Traded Interest Rat€ Derivative

are f,o

40.4.3 Disclosueo on risk expocure in derivatives - Quelitrtive Disclosure

The Compmy has no tnnuctions/exposue in dqiwtives in the curent aod previous yeu.

40,4.4 Disclosures on risk in derivetives - disclosure

Note: ue no cuBeot ye*.

40.5

40.5.1

Secudtisation

Note; There are no o(etrt

year

year

ved.

' for Asset Reconstruction40.5.2 Details ofEnancial assets sold to Securitisation/ Reconstruction

are no

As at

March 31, 2021

As rr
March 31, 2020

Particulus

i) The notional principal of mp agreements

(ii) Iosses which would be inmed if courerpatties failed to fi.rlfil theit obligations under

(iif Collatenl requted by the housing firmce comgmies upon mtering into mps
(iv) Concentntion of cedit risL rising ftom the mps
(v) The fair value of the swap bok

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nit
Nil
Nil

Particulare As at

March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

(r) Notional principal mout of exchange taded IR dsiwtives udertaLen duing the yru
(instrumt wise)

(if Notional principal momt of exchmge taded IR dsintives outstandiog as on end of
yru (insmrrent-wiw)
(ri) Notional principal mout of exchange taded IR deriwtives outstanding md not

"highly effective' (imtrurent-wise)

(iv) Muk-to-rorket rzlue of exchange traded IR derimtives outstanding md oot "highly
effective' (irotrumt-wise)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Paniculre Currency
Derivatives

Interest Rate
Derivatives

(i) Derimtives (Notional Principal Amomt)
(i) Muted to ruLet positiom [1]

(i) Assets (+)

0) Liability C)
(iii) Credit erposw [2]
(iv) Unhedstd expoures

Nit

Nil
Nil
NiI

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nit

Nit

Nil
Nit

Nit

Particulars Numbers Amount
1. Nmber of Special Purpose Entities (SPYs) sponmred by the Housing Fimce
Company (HFC) for seoritisation tnnsactions

2. Toal mout of *cwitiwd mrts as per boks of the SPVs sponsored

3. Toal momt of exposues teained by the HFC towards the Miaim futotion
Requircmot (Ir{RR) rs on the date of balaace sheet

(t) Off-halmce shet expoues towds credit cmcentation
(I) On-balance sheet exposues towtds credit concenmtion

4, Amouot of exposues to recuitisation tmnsactions otha than MRR

I) Off-balalce sheet exposucs towds 6edit concentntion

a) Exposure to own wcuitiations
b) Exposue to third party recuitisations

QI) On-balance sheet exposues towds qedit concmtation
a) Exporc to own securitiations

b) Exposue to thid party secuitiutions

Nit

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nit

Nit

Nit
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil

Nit

Nit

Nil
Nit

Nit

Nil
Nit

Nit

Nil
Nit

Nil

Particulars As at
March 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

Aggegate wlue (net of provisions) of accounts sold to Seoritisation Compmy /
Aggregate consideatioo

Additional coroidention realizd in respect of accoms trarofeued in mdier yeam

No. ofaccounts

/ loss over net book wlue

Nil
Nil
Nit
Nil

Nil

Nit

Nrl

Nil
Nit

Nil
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Particulars As at
March 31,2021

A6 et
March 31,2020

@ Nmba of accous
(ir) Aggegate ulue (net of prcvisim) of accouts rosigoed

(ii| Aggrepte consideation

(iv) Additional considention qliad in respect of accouts tnrofercd in zulic yre

(v) Asemte min / loss over net bok rtlue

Nil
Nit

Nit
NiI

Nit

Nil
NiI

Nil
Nit

Nil

ART Housing Finence (India) Limited
Notes foming pert of the Finmciat Statements for the yeu ended Merch 31, 2021

(Amount io INR lacs, unless othwiw stated)

40,5.3 Details of transactions undertaken HFCs

Note There arc no assigment the cunent yeal

40.5.4 Details of non-perfoming frnancial assets purchased / sold

A. Details of financial essets

B. Details financial assets sold:

Particulars As at

March 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

1. Nmbs of accouts pld
2. Aggregate outsanding

3. Asslesate comidmtion received

Nit
Nit

Nil

Nil
Nit

Nil

40,6 Assets Liability Mmagement
of certain items of Assets/ Liabilities As on March 2021

ofcertair items of ass€ts .nd liabilitie8 As on March 3 2020

cufiency cufrency ate I

Particulare As at

March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

1 . (a) Number of rccoms pwhared duing the y*
@) Aggregate ousmding

2. (a) Of these, number of accounts resEuctured duing the yru
(b) Ae$egate oustanding

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nit

Nit

Nit

Nit

LiabiUties Assets

Borrowings ftom
banla/ NHB

Market
borrowings

Advances Invesments

1 day to 30-31 days (one month)

Over ooe month to 2 months

Over 2 rcnths upto 3 rcnths
Over 3 rcnths to 6 rcnths
Over 6 rcnths to 1 yer
Over 1 ytr to 3 ya6
Over 3 yrus to 5 yeus

Over 5 yers to 7 yre
Over 7 yffi to 10 y@6

Ovo 10 yem

500.00

2,000.00

999.65

254.'t3

177.52

118.79

363.08

762.81

3,050.62

3,195.98

3,841.89

6,392.18

23,777.81

tol.41

5.00

Total 3,499.65 41,875.42 lL2.47

Liabilities Assets

Borrowingr &om
banks

Market
borrowings

Advances Investments

1 day to 30-31 days (one mmth)
Over one month to 2 montls
Ovet 2 months upto 3 months

Orer 3 months to 6 months

Over 6 rcnths to 1 y*
Overlyeuto3yas
Owr3ymto5ym
Over 5 ym to 7 yats
Ovet 7 yrus to 10 yem
Ovc 10 ymrs

250.00

840.57

1,681.14

6,124.56

5,834.56

1,590.70

r,189.95

I 14.00

590.57 306.61

310.07

313.55

961.60

1308.43

4,810.12

4,833.78

5278.21

7 917.51
24,713.12

2281.41

5.00

Total 18,816.05 50,813.01 2,286.44

+
Y

HoU
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ART Howing Fiaucc (India) Limited
Notcs fomiug prrt of thc Finmcirl Stetcments for thc yetr cndcd Mrch 31, 2021

(Amout in INR lacs, unless othwire sated)

40.7

40.7.1

Exposure

to Red Estate Sector

40.7.2 Exposure to Capital Muket
The has no to ruket oa in the onent and

Category

March 31,

As

March 31,

As

Rcridcntid mortgegr-
knding 6rlly wed by m4gages m asidmtid property thet is orvill be
acupied by the bomwc u dnt is mted;

- Individuzl housing loms up to Fs. 15 lalh

knding rred by mortgages on comrcial mJ esates (office buildings, tetail
space, multipurpose comrcial premises, multi-fanily residenrial buildings, multi-
teroted comercial premires, industtial or wehou* space, hotels, land
acquisition, developrent ud consmction, etc.).

Investrneos in Mortgage Backed &cuities (lr,(BS) & othet recuritised exposures

a. Residential

b. Comercial Real Esate

based md non-fund ba*d exposws on National Housing Banh (lrlHB) md

a. exPosure

Fironce

Indirect expoaurc

- Clthers

Commercial real estrte-

1,622.22

Nit
Nil

Nil

19911.93

20341.27

2,767.12

Nit

Nil

NiI

22,006.'12

26939.17

tti.;ivtgAl

March 31, March 31,

As

equity uimted mtual funds thc corpu of which i! not eiclusively invested in

admces agairot shares / bonds/ debmnrcs c otha *otities or on clm basis to
for investrrent in shues (includiog IPOs/ ESOPs), convertible bonds,
debennrres, and unis of equity<dented murual funds;

adroces for any otier putpo*s whrc shares or convertible bonds or convertible
or units of eguity orimted munul funds ue akm a primry security;

advmces for any other pulposes to the extent secured by the collateal wority of
or convertible boods or convenible debeoues or uits ofequity oriented munul

i.e. whre the ptimry wruity othr thm shares / convertible bonds / convenible
/ uits of equity odented mutual funds'des not fully cover the adroces;

(v) sroed md unrerued edroces to stakbroLes and gmtce s issued on behalf of
stctbrcLs md mket @le6;
(v) lm smctioned to corpoates against the Eroity of shres / bonds / debentues c

bridge lous to compmies against expected equity flows / issues;

t All erpores to Vmture Capital Fuds (both registred md wgstered)
Matket

or onsecunhes buisclem for contribution theto of nryreeting prorcter's equity
m ofmticipation rusurg rcsoEes;

(i) direct conveniblc bonds, convertible

debt;

Nrl

Nil

Nit

Nrl

Nit

Nil

Nit
Nit
Nit

Nil

Nit

Nrl

Nil

Nit

Nit
Nit
Nit

t{cu
Y
+

9-

Paticulars

q/



ART Housing Finrncc (India) Limited

Notes foming prra of the Finrnciel Stetements for the yer ended March 3l' 2021

(Amout ia INR lacs, unless othwise state{

40.?.3 Deteils of Fiaocing of prent comPmy Product8
Thm is no fimcing of Pdmt comPmy Products.

40.7.4 Details of Single Borrowr Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded

The company has not exceeded the Singte Borower Limit md Group Boaower Limit as prescribed by NHB.

40.7.5 Details of Unsecured Advances

The Compmy has oot fimnced my wecured adroces against iatangrble secudties such as rights,licenses, authority

etc as collatenl security.

40.7.6 Exposure to group companies engaged io real esute business

Description Amount ({ in
Inkhs)

o/o of omed fund

i) Exposue to uy single entity in a group

eogaged in real estate business

Nil Nil

ii) Expbsue to dl entities in a group engaged

in real estate business

Nil Nil

40.8 Other discloswe
40.8,1 Registration obtained ftom othct fio.ncial sector regulaton

The Compmy has not obtained registntion ftom any othet Fimce sectot regulato.

40.8.2

in exmi* of the powm vested with it Act,1987 imposed penalty of:-

1. Rs 1,60,000/- m Aptd 2l,mN on accout of non-corplimcc of Pm 2(1)(rc) of the HFC (NHB) Directions 2010 md Policy Cirolar
55 and Policy Ciorlr 83 wn ingction of position r of Mrch 31, 2019.

2. Rs 1,000/- on May 26p020 for Non- complioce with the prcvisims of pugnph ,14(2)(if of the Housing Fimnce Cornpmies (NHB)

Directiom,2010.
3. Rs 25,000/- oo Septenbet 16,202.0 6 accout of no<omplimce of Po 3(c) of Housirg Fimce Compmies on Apprcval of
Acquisitim c Tmfa of Contol2016.

40.8.3 Related Parry Transactions

All Related Party Tmnsactions (RPT$ of the company covered under the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant provision of Accounting

Standard will be apptoved by the audit comittee of the Board ftom time to time. Dealing with Relared Party Tmnsactions shali be in

accordance with the Companies Act,2013 & Rules thereundcr, and other applicable provisions for the time being in force.

Details of all mnsactions with related pmies are disclosed in Note 35 above.

40.8.4 Group Structure

'Yes Capital (lndia) Primte Limited (-Jltimte Holding Company)

.t
ART Capial (ndia) Primte Limited (Parent of the Holding Company)

t
ART Business md Consumer Finmce (India) Primte Limited (tlolding Company)

J
ART Housing Fironce (Iodra) Limited (Company)

J

ART Dstribution (ndia) Pdmte Limited (Subsidiary Company)

40.8.5 Rating assigaed by Credit Rating Agencies and migration ofrating during the year

Duing dre yeu, CARE has assigned nting and NCD- Rs 100

crores) on May 19, 2020 ftom'BBB' under same to ,BB+' (BB

Plus) Stable Oudool (bng Tem Facilities-

Diiclosure of Penalties imposed by NHB end other regulators As at
Mrrch 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

i) Details of peoalty lwied by National housing bmk*
if Adverc corcts by the Natiooal housing bant oo regulrtory complimces

ii| Pmenuge of outstardiog lm gruted agairot cotlateol of gold ieweUery to toal
outstanding srs - The Compay hr not gmted my loms agaiast collatenl of gold

lwetlery

1.86

Nil
Nil

NiI

Nil
Nil

d



ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
Notes foming part of the Financiel Statemcntc for thc year cnded March 31, 2021

(Amout ia INR lacs, uless othevire sated)

40,8.6 Provisions ud Contingenciee
Break of rProvisions end shom under the head

40.8.7 oflom ud advlnces end thereon

40.8 Concentration ofpublic deposis- advanccs. exposures and NpAs
40.8.1 Concenration of

in ProEt and Irss Account

v

As
March 31, March 31,

Provision mde towuds income-tax

Provision towards sub standud, doubtfirl md loss assets

Provision for standard assets (with details like teaset loan, CRE, CRE-RH €tc.)

Teaser loms

CRE

CRE.RH
Other studard assets

Other provisioo and contingencies (with details)

for

1. Provisions for

compensated absences

benefits

Nit
(2.83)

0.e4)
(31.8,r)

598.44

195.89

14.79

120.00

41.21

31,1.85

22.57

Nit
(4.3e)

0.57)

Qe.e3)

23.05

226.14

147.52

loansParticulus

As et
March 31,2021

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

33,838.45

98.30

532.46
't9.87

10.76

17.69

68.76

68.76

6.47

6.47

41,01 5.07

181.81

71.57

10.74

7 p27.62

33.66

303.50

45,53

30.71

7.68

3.16

3.16

59.24

8.89

9,659.96

125.81

0.70

0.70

34,510.43 41,093.11 7,364.99 9,719.90

Standerd assets

a) Toal outstaoding mout
b) Provisions mde

Sub-stmdard essets

a) Toul outstanding mount
b) Prcvisions mde

Doubtful assets - Cetegory-I
a) Total outshding mout
b) Provisions rode

Doubtful essets - C.tegory-II
a) Total outstanding mout
b) Provisions mde

Doubtfrrl escets - Category-Ill
a) Toal outstardiog momt
b) Provisions mde

lass assets

a) Total outstandiog amomt
b) Provisions mde

Totd
r) Total outstanding amomt
b) Provisiorc mde 264.62 199.01 90.02 135.41

Particulars As atl
March 31,20211

As at
March 31, 2020

of deposits of twenty largest depositos to toal deposits of the HFC

of twenty largest The Company is noo public deposit aking
housiag fimnce company and has oot accepted

my public deposits
during the curent yar or previous years.

tr:1;;.;jSd/

Particulars As el



ART Housing Finmce (ndia) Limited

Notes foming P.rt of the Finencid St.temetrts for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Amout io INR lacs, unless oth€ryis stated)

40,8.2 Concentretion ofloans and advances

40.8.3 Concentration of all off-belancc shcct

40.8.4 Concentration of NPAs

Particularc A! at

Match 31, 2021

As at
March 31,2020

297.89 120.01

40.8.5 Sector-wi8e NPA! - ofNPAs to total advances in that sector

40.8.6 Movement of NPAs

9

Perticulus As atl
March 31, 20211

As at
March 31,2020

Toal lm md admces to tweoty largest borcwes
Pwmage of lm md admces to twenty largest bo[ow6 to total admces of dre

HFC

,rr:r::^l 2,'191.03

9.gvk

Prticulan As at

March 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

Total exposre to twef,ty largest borcwe$/ sstomes
Pacentage of exposms to twenty largest borowen/ ostomes to total exPosule of the

HFC on borcwm/ customers

1,801.74

410%

2,894.21

9.90%

March 31,2021

As
March 31,2020

Nil
Nil
Nil

1.95%

Nil
Nil
Nil

NiI

Nrl
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

0.
1 . Individuals

2. Buildea/Proiect lms
3. Corpontes

4. Othes (specift)

Non-Housing loens:

1 . Individuals

2. Buildea/Project tom
3, Corpontes

4. Others

March 31,2021 March 31,

As

4.22

2"t.52

4.96

26.79

28.12

142.89

33.03

137.97

23.90

115.36

28.08

1 1 1.19

137.97

904.12

29.34

1,009.35

1 11.19

700.42

24.91

786.61

26.79

200.29

4..10

222.68

a) Opening balance

b) Additions duiog the year

c) Reductions during the yeu

d) Closing balance

(III) Movement of net NPAS

a) Opening balance

b) Additions during the year

c) Reductions during the year

d) Closing balance

IV) Movement ofprovisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)

balance

Movement of NPAs (Gross)
Net NPAS to net

a) Opening balance

b) Provisions mde during thc yu
c) Wdte-off/write-back of excess prcvisions

Total exDosure to too ten NPA accouots

As at



ART Housing Finence (India) Limited
Note6 foming part of the Fiaancial Statements for the yer ended March 31, 2021

(Amomt in INR lacs, unless otheruiw stated)

40.8,7 Oversec assets

Paticulare As at
March 31,2021

As at
March 51, 2020

Company has not held any overseas assets Nit Nit

40.8.8 Off-balance sheet SPVs are to be consolidated as

Particulars As at

March 31,2021
As at

Merch 31, 2020
The Compuy des not have my SPVS sponrcred which is required toEconsolidated ro
per accowting nom,

Nit Nil

40.8.9 Customer

Disclosure of&auds rs per NHB (ND)/DRS/Policy circular No.92l2018-19 dated 05 Febrtary,2019
There wete two cases of fraud mouting to Rs.38.20 lakhs as reported to NHB during the financial year ended 31st March 2021 (previous
Year: Nil)

Previous year's figues have been regtouped, re-mnged and reclassified wherever necessary to conhm to the current year classi6cation as
per Ind AS.

This is dre Notes to Accomts refercd to in ou rqrort of even date
FoTSMMP&Company
Fim Registretion Number: 120438!7

For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors of
ART Housing

Pandey Vipin Jain
Parmer Chairperon

DIN:00250437
lvlanagrog & CEO

Membership No: 166729

W
\Irholetime Director &

Company Sccretary

DIN:08741012
Mem No ACS 24016

4t

42

Place: Mmbai
Date:May 11,2021

Bharat Dhall
Head of Fiunce

Place: Gmgra.m

Aate:Mty 11,2021

Particulars As at
March 31,2021

As et
March 31,2020

a) No. of complaints pending at the begiming of the yru
b) No. of complaints teceived duing the yeu
c) No. of complaints redressed duirg the yw
d) No. of complaints pending rt the end of the yru

0

18

18

0

)
1,t

16

0

'*.
t.,
L

a
c(

.4t

B=



Form AOC-I
(?usuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Sectionl2g read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

statement containing sarient features of the linancial statements
of subsidiaries or associate companies or ioint ventures

Part.{u -Subsidiaries

Part B:- Associates and oint Ventures

FoTSMMP&Company
Firm Regisuation Number: 120439W
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

t

Chintan Shah

Partner

Ilfembership No: 166729

Place: lvlumbai

Date: May 25,2021 q,lk..,

Pandey

Director
DIN: 00250437

Dhall
Head of Finance

Place: Gurugram
Date: I\{ay 25,2021

Vipin
MaoagingDirector& CEO

DIN: 03456031

Director &
Secretary

DIN: 08741012

Mem No ACS 24016

Particulars Details

date since when subsidiary was acquired
Reporting pedod for the subsidiary concemed, if different
from the holding Company's reporting period

currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of
relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries

Extent of

assets

Liabilities

(in

Profit before taxation

after taxation

ame of the subsidiary

Reserves and surplus

capital

for taxation

Dividend

ART Distribution (I) private Limited
Incorporated on August 11, 2015
Same as of holding Company: April 1 , 2020 to March 31, 2021

Rs 5,00,000/-

Rs (3,58,964)/-

Rs 2,16,036/-

Rs 75,000/-

RsNil
Rs Nil
Rs Q5,2s4)/-
Rs Qs,zsa)/-
Nil
Nil
t@%

rNR 0t,

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold
during the year

1. Names subsidiaries are yet to coflunence operations (t) Private

NIL

to Associate Companies andJoint Ventues

Statement SectiontoPursuant the2e(3) Act, Since the does havenot AssociateCompany orAny ventureJoint
the disclosure under this section notlsCompany applicable.

* MUIil,!AI *

f ina

:
o,

*

W



DIRECTORS'REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directots are pleased to present the Eighth (8s) Annual Report together with the Audited
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31-, 2021. of ART Housing Finance (India)

t-imited (formerly knozun as ART Affordable Housing Finance (lrulia) Limited) (hereinalter referred

to as "the Company" "your Company" or "AHFL")

FINANCIAL REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

A. Income

Your Company posted total income of Rs 66.1 crores during the year, as compared to Rs 73.9

crores in the previous year, which represents a decrease o110.55% year-on-year- Out of this,

interest income on loans has decreased by 10.60%, from Rs. 70.05 crores in the previous year

2019-20 to Rs. 62.62 crores in FY 2020-21.- This is primarily due to decrease in loan porffolio as

compared to previous year.

B. Expenses

Expenses including financial costs for the year stood at Rs 49.08 crores, as compared to Rs 65.33

crores for the previous year representing a decrease of 24.86%-

Company eamed a Profit before Tax of Rs 16.99 crores and Profit after tax of Rs 13.43 crores

for the year as against Profit after tax of Rs 5.62 crores in the previous year (increase of 139.4%).
(in Crores)

w
L

Particulars Fvmzv2l Fv20tr9-m

Total Revenues 66.08 73.87

Total Expenditure 49.08 65.32

8.M

Less: Provisions for Tax Deferred Tax 3.82 2.93

Net Profit after Taxes (PAT) 13.17 5.61

o.26 0.m
L3.43

Earnings per share (Face Value Rs. lfl- each)

Basic (Rs.) 0.35 0.15

Diluted (Rs.) 0.35 0.14

C. Profits

Profit before Taxation (PBT) 16.99

Other comprehensive income (net of tax)
Tota1 comprehensive income for the year 5.62



BUSINESS PERTORMANCE HIGHLIGTITS

During the year. the banls and lending krstitutions continued to be over-cautious in lending

to the HfCf NBFC sector which impacting the gowth of credit offtake in the entire industry..

However, given the extemal headwinds, we consciously took a cautious approach towards

calibrated growth and conservation of liquidity and repal'rnent of borrowings. with the

impact of COVTO-IS and series of lockdowns across various states artd at national level, the

Company,s fresh business also got impacted. Further, as directed by Reserve Bank of India

(RBI), Company has offered moratorium to its customers for the period from March 1,2020 to

August 31, 2020.

a) Sanctions

During the year, your Company has sanctioned fresh loans amounting to only Rs 0.75 crores

as compared to Rs 81.1 crores in the previous year.

b) Disbursements

During the year, your Company has disbursed loans amounting to Rs 9.62 crores as compared

to Rs 67.31'crores in the pi"..ious year. The decline in disbursement is due to the extemal

headwinds in NBFC/F{FC market and nationwide impact of Covid 19 across'

c) Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Given the impact of Covid 19, your Company has also witnessed increase in delinquencies

during the year. The Gross NPAs sartds at 2.22% as on March 31, 2021 as compared. to 0.27%

as of March31, 2020. The Company continues to have strong focus of collections and recovery

mechanism.

Your Company continued to review its porffolio quality periodically to avoid any

delinquencies, and apply course corrections if any required, apart from maintaining high

lending standards to mitigate risks.

During the year under review, your company has rrade a provision for Expected Credit losses

@CL) Ior Rs 7.70 crores towards the credit impaired loans and other loans. The Company has

also considered additional likely economic imPact on customers' cashflows due to fust and

second wave of COVID-19. .

d) Portfolio of the comPdry

The total gross loan outstanding porsolio of your Company stood at Rs 418-60 crores as on

March 31, 2021 as against Rs 508.78 crores in the previous year.

uq
/-
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Portfolio (Cr)
600

500

400

300

2@

1@

0 I98.1

FY 1-1

453.5

FY 18

560.5

FY 19

508.8

*20

418.6

FY 21

The average ticket size of refail pordolio as on March 31, 2jJ.21 stood at Rs 8.17 lakhs as
compared to Rs 9.50 lakhs in previous year.

BRANCHNE.IWORK

Your Company's branch network spread across 25 locations across 6 regions (Delhi NCR,
Haryana, Rajasthan, Maharashtra, Gujarat and Uttar Pradesh) as on March 31, 2021.

Details of the branches of the Company as on March 31, 2021 are given below:

Region Branch Count
(Physical)

Delhi-NCR 4
Haryana 5

Rajasthan 7
Maharashtra 5
Guiarat 3
Uttar Pradesh .1.

Total 25

DTVIDEND

Your Board does not recommend any dividend for the financial year under review.

TRANSFERTO RESER\rES

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 29C of the NHB Ac! 1987, an amount of Rs 3.99 crores
has been transferred to Special Reserves maintained under Section 36(1)(viii) of the lncome
Tax Act, for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. For dei^ils of Reserves and Surplus of the
Company, please refer Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on Match 31, 2021
of the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 91,,2021.

A

q
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STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFNRS

The key parameters and milestones of the Corrpany has treen zummarized below:

1. The team strength stands at 190 as on March 31, 2021.
2. The Company operates though 25 physical branches across 6 regions.
3. Company has also invested in strengthening the collections team for early conhols on

the delinquency, i{ any.
4. The Company has made significant invesbnent both knowledge and financial, in

digitisation of the business workflow activities.
5. The gross loan pordolio as on March 31,2027 stood at Rs 418.60 crore as against Rs

508.78 crore as on March 31, 2020.
6. The Capital Adequary Ratio as on March 31,2021, was 784.32% well above the current

regulatory limit as stipulated by RBI/ NHB for housing finance companies.
7. Your company has continued to maintain asset quality with a Gross NpA at 2.22 % on

March 31',2021and Net NPA at 1.88 %, in-spite of difficult economic environment and
effect on customer cashllows due to impact of Covid 19.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

No material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of your Company have
occurred between the end of year under review and date of this Directols Report.

CHANGE IN THE NATI,]RE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of the main Business of the Company.

SUBSIDARY COMPANY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your Company has 1 (One) wholly owned subsid.iary as on March 27, 2027 i,e. ART
Distribution (I) Private Limited. Your Company does not have any joint venture(s)/ associate
company(ies) within the meaning of section 2(6) of the Act. pursuant to the fovisions of
rytion 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2o16 and aII other applicable sections hereafter as amended from time to time, the company
shall not be required to consolidate its financial statements in case its ultimate oi any
intermediate holding company files consolidated financial statements with the Registrar which
is in compliance with the applicable Accounting Standards. Hmcefortlr, the Comlany has not
consolidated its financid statements with its wholly owned subsidiary company i.e., ART
Distribution @ Private Limited.

During the year under review, there has been no material change in the nature of the business
of the subsidiary company and no Company has become or ieased to be subsidiary, |oint
Venture or Associate Company of the Company.

L
q
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SHARE CAPTTAL

(i) AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

On March 3L, 2021,, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company stood at Rs
1000,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Thousand Crores Only) divided into 100,00,0Q000 (One
Hun&ed Crores) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.

(ii) ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID.UP SHARE CAPITAL

Orr March 31,2021,, the Iszued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company
stood at Rs 385,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Hundred and Eighty-Five Crores Only)
divided into 38,50,00,000 (Thirty-Eight Crores Fifty L^akhs) Equity Shares of Rs 10/-
(Rupem Ten Only) each.

Your Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights as to voting,,
dividmd or otherwise.

BORROWING POWERS OFTHE COMPANY

Pursuant to section f80(1)(c) o{ the Companies Ac! 2013 (the 'Acfl, the borrowing limits
approved by the shareholders which may be exercised by the Board, presently stand at Rs. 750
crores.

PUBLIC DEPOSTTS

Your Company being a non-deposit accepting Housing Finance Company as per the Non-
Banking Financial Company-Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directioru, 20Zl has
not accepted renewed or held any public deposits during the year under review and shall not
accept any deposits from the public without obtaining prior approval of the NHB and
accordingly requirements under Chapter V of the Act read with RuIe 8(5)(v) and 8(5)(vi) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as well as requirement of maintaining liquid assets as
specified under Section 298 of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 are not applicable to your
Company.

MASTER DIRECTION ISSUED BY RESERVE BANK OF INDIA:

The Reserve Bank of lndia having considered it necessary in the public interest has issued
Master Direction on February 1 7, 2021 (with Immediate effect). These Directions shall be called
as the Non- Banking Financial Company- Housing Finance Company (Reserve Banl)
Directioru, 2021.

As per these Directions the governing authority for Housing Finance Company (HFCs) shifts
from National Housing Bank (NHB) to the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

L
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FINANCE

During the year under review, the Company has not obtained any further borrowings from
Bank or availed refinance from NHB (National Housing Bank). However, company has repaid
all term loan with NHB for Rs 1 4.O.67 Cr.

The aggregate bank borrowings, i.e., term loans plus overdraft, at the end of the financial year
stood at Rs 34.92 crores as comp.ued to Rs 188.00 crores at the end of the previous year. Further
the overall borrowings are within regulatory ceiling.

The overall cost of borrowings (average) was 9.50% p.a. as on March 31.,2O2L.

CREDIT LINKED SUBSIDY SC}IEME

Your Company and ib management team is highly committed to the'Housing for all' mission
Keeping this in mind, the Company participated in Govemment initiatives to facilitate benefits
of the 'Pradhan Mantri Awas Yoina: Credit Linked Subsidy Scheme' (PMAY-CI.SS) from NHB
for its customers across urban and semi-urban lndia.

During the year, the Company successftrlly delivered subsidy of Rs 5.42 crores to its customers
under the PMAY{ISS rheme under different rheme.

CREDIT RATING

During the year, the Company's rating was changed to "CARE BB+ witl Stable outlook,, in
May 2020. The Rating Agency maintained same rating of BB+ in its further review done in the
month of October 2020.

MORATORII.JM OF LOANS

The Reserve Bank of India issued guidelines on March 27, 2020 and its extension vide its
notification dated'May 23,2020 permitting all commercial ban-ks, co-operative banks, all-India
Financial Institutions and NBFCs (including housing finance companies and micro-finance
institutions) ("lending institutions") to give moratorium to customers on paFnerrt of
instalments falling due between March 1, 2020 to May 31, 2020 and further extended from June
1,2020 to August 31. 2020. Accordingly, the Company started offering mg,ratorium to its
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customers basis a Board approved policy. For all such accounts where the moratorium is

granted, the prudential assets dassification shall remain stand-still during the moratorium
period (i.e., the number of days past due shall exclude the moratoriurn period for the purposes

of asset classification under Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms)

In relevance to RBI guidelines on August 6,2020, lor restructuring of cases having impact due

to COVID-19, company has not restructured any case.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRE'IARIAL STANDARDS

Your Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of
Directors and the Secretarial Standards on General Meeting issued by the Institute of Company

Secretaries of India.

EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RE"IURN

In terms of provisions of section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, the extract of Annua1 Retum of the Company as at

financial year ended March 31, ZnTl as rn the prerribed Form MGT-9 is attached here as

Amexne- A andthe same is also available on the website of the Company at wu'n'.arthJc.com.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board of Directors of your Company as on March 31, 2021 is mentioned

as tplow:

Name of Director Category

Mr. Ahrl Mehta Independent Director
Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey Independent Director
Ms. Ritika Bhatia Whole Time Director
Mr. Stuenik Shah Independent Director
Mr. Vipin fain Managing Director and CEO

CESSATION:

During the year under review, the following Ditectors ceased form the Boald of the Company:

o Mr. Arvind Hali resigned from his position as Managing Director and CEO w.e.f. May
20,2020.
Mr. Lt Gen (Retd) Dr SP Kochhar resigned from his position as lndependent Director
w.e.f. May 2,2O20.
Mr. Raj Vikash Verma resigned from his position as Non-Executive Director w.e.I., April

L
30,2020.
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Mr Briiesh Kumar Gupta resigned from the post of Independerrt Director w.e.f., the
dosing hours of May 20,2!N.
Mr. Pradeep Ku:nar resigned from the post of Non-Executive Director w.e.f.,May 27,
2020
Mr. Manish Singh resigned from his position as Whole Time Director and CEO w.e.f.,
March 1, 2021.

A-PPOINTMENTS:

During the year under review, the following Directors were appointed on the Board of the
Company.

Mr. Ahil Mehta was appointed as a Director in the capacity of Independent Director
w.e.f.May9,2020
Ms. Ritika Bhatia was appointed in category of Whole-Time Dkector in the Board
Meeting dated May 9, 2020.
Mr Manish Singh was appointed in category of Whole-Time Director in the Board
Meeting dated May 20,2020.
Mr Rahul Kurnar Pandey was appointed as a Director in the capacity of Independent
Director w.e.f. May 22,2OZn
Mr. Shrenik Shah was appointed was appointed as a Director in the capacity of
lndependent Direcbr w.e.f . \ly '1.6,2O2O

Mr Vipin fain is appointed as Managing Director and CEO w.e.f. March 2,2O27.Tlne
approval to this effect received ftom RBI on May 7, 2021.

DTRECTOR(S) DTSCLOSURES

Based on the declarations and confirmations received in ter:ms of the provisions of the Act,
circular(s)/ notification(s)/ direction(s) issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI Master
Dierctions)/ National Housing Bank (NHB Regulations) and other applicable laws, none of
the Directors on the Board of your Company are disqualified from being appointed as
Directors.

Pursuant to section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has rreived decLaration
ftom Mr. Atul Mehta, Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey and Mr. Skenik Shah, Independent Directors
of the Company affirming compliance with the criteria of independence as specified in Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In terms of the Act, the following percons are the Key Managerial Personnel (,,KMp,) of the
Company as on March 31, 2021:

o Mr Vipin Iain
o Ms Ritika Bhatia

Chief Financial Officer, Managing Director & CEO
Whole Time Director and Company Secetary

A
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PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Ac! 2013, the Board of Directors adopted a Board
Performance Evaluation Policy and detailed process for facilitating performance evaluation of
the Board, as a collective entity, that of its Committee(s) and individual Directors including the
Chairman

In terms of the requirement of schedule rv of the Ac! a separate meeting of lndependent
Director was held on March 30, 2021 to review the performance of Non-lndependent directors
induding the Chairman and the Board as a collective entity- perfomrance evaluation was
carried out by way of obtaining feedback from independent Director through a structured
questionnaire prepared and in accordance with the Board Performance Evaluation policy and
Performance Evaluation Process.

Based on the questionnaire circulated and discussions at the independent Directors rteeting
the independent Director expressed satisfaction with the overall performance of the Board and
Non-Independent Directors including the chairperson.

DIRECTOR RE"TIRING BY ROTATION

In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Articles of Association of the
Corrpany, considering the Board constitution as on the date of this report, the said section shall
not be applicable to the Company.

REMI,'NERATION POLICY

In terms of section 178 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors the Company has
constituted Nomination & Remuneration crmmittee whose rope of work co*rers the
performance evaluation of the Directors, Key Managerial personnel and senior Management
of the Company. The evaluation and appraisal are done in line with the perfoinimce
Management Policy of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial personnel are givm in MGT-9 (Arurexure A).

COMMITTEES OFTHE BOARD

AUDITCOMMITTEE
The Board of Directors had constituted the Audit Committee pursuant to provisions of Section
17 of the Companies Act 2013 on August 27, zus. The Committee consists of the following
Directors as on March 3-1,,2021,:

Name of Director - Member Designation
Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey lndependent Drector
Mr. Atnl Mehta Independent Director
Mr. Shrenik Shah Independent Director

A
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Pursuant to provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors had
constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on August 21, 2015. The Committee
consists of following Directors as on March 31, 2021:

Name of Director - Member Designation

Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey Independmt Director

Mr. Atul Mehta Independent Director
Mr. Shrenik Shah lndependent Director

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee on January 16, 2018.
The Committee consists of following Directors as on March31,2027:

Name of Director - Member Designation

Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey Independent Director.

Mr. Atul Mehta Independent Director

Mr. Shrenik Shah Independent Director

Ms. Ritika Bhatia Whole Time Director and
Company Secretary

NUMBER OF MEETINGS HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR2O2GIZ:

Table containing defails of the Board Meetings and Commiftees Meetings held during the year
under review, along with dates are as below. The Board meetings were held in a manner that
not more than 120 days intewened betweerr two consecutive meetings. The required quorum
was ptesmt at all the above-mentioned meetings.

S. No Name of Conmittee No of Meetings

1. Board Meetings 12 flwelve) 1. April28,2020
2. May 9,2A20
3. May 20,2U20
4. 1wre9,2020
5. lwte 29,2020
6. JuJyza2%O
7. AttgustSl,zOm
8. September 25, 2020
9. Oclobe.r 26,2V20
70. February 1,2021,
1 1 . February 11 2021
12. March 30, 2021 frq

A
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2 Audit Committee 5 (Five) 7. lrly 24,2020
2. August 31,2020
3. October 26,2020
4. February 15,2021
5. March 30,2021

3. Nomination
Remuneration
Committee

and 1(one) "1. October 26,2020;

4. Corporate
Responsibility
Committee

Social 1 (One) 1. March 30, 2021

5. Independent Director
Meeting

1(one) 1. March 30, 2021

During the year under review, the Annual General Meeting for Financial Year 2019-20 was
held on |uly 27, 2020.

ATTENDANCE OF DIRCTORS/ MEMBERS AT THE BOARD AND COMMTTTEE
MEE-TINGS AS PER COMPANIES ACT,2fl3

L
v

# Name Board Meetings Audit Committee
Meeting

Nomination &
Remuneration

Committee

Corporate Social
Responsibility

Commifte€
Meaing

s held
Attended

Meetin
gs held

Attende
d

Meetings
held

Attende
d

Meetin
gs held

Attend
ed

1

Mr
Arvind
Roshan
Hali

3 3

2.
Mr Raj
Vikash
Verma

1 1

3.

Lt Gen
(Retd) Dr
Suktuai
Pal
Kochhar

1 1

4.

Mr.
Briierh
Kumar
Gupta

3 3

5

Mr
Pradeep
Kumar

3

7
Atul
Mehta

.10
10 5 5 1 1 1 1

8.

Rahul
Kumar
Pandey

9 9 5 5 1 1 I I

9
Shrenik
Suresh
Shah

7 7 f, 1 1

I
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10
Manish
Singh

5 5

11
Ritika
Bhaha

6 6
1 1

*Mr Raj Vikas Verma resigned from the Board as a Non-Executive Director w.e.f. Aptl[30,2020
* Lt Gen (Retd) Dr S P Kochhar resigned from the Board as lndepmdent Director w.e.f. May 02,
2020
*Mr. Arvind Hali resigned from the Board as Managing Director and CEO w.e.tMay 2O,2020
*Mr. Brijesh Gupta resigned from the Board as Independent Directot w.e.f May 20,2O20
* Mr. Pardeep Kumar resigned from the Board as Non-executive Director w.e.f May 27,2O20

STATUTORY AUDITORS

In terms of provisions of Secdon 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the auditor appointed in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) meeting
should hold office from the conclusion of that meeting till the conclusion of the sixth AGM,
with the meeting wherein zuch appointment had been made being counted as the first meeting.
M/s. Walker Chandiok & Associates, Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company in the 6ttt Annual General Meeting of the Company for a period of 5
years till the condusion of 11h Arurual General Meeting of the Company. However, in the year
under review, M/s. Walker Chandiok & Associates had expressed their inability to continue
as Statutory Auditors vide their resignation before the expiry of their term, restrlting into
casual vacancy.

The Board of Directors appointed M/s. S M M P & Company, Chartered Accountants as
Statutory Auditors of the Company, wherein the said appointment was approved by the
Shareholders in the 7th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

AIJDITORS'REPORTS

Statutory Audit Report
M,u s. S M M P & Company, Statutory Auditors in their report(s) on the annual audited Ind AS
financial statements of your Company for the financial year ended MarcJ137,2021,, have not
submitted any qualifications and reservations. However, in "Emphasis of Mattel' auditors
have pointed the provisional attachment of bank accounts and fixed deposits by Enforcement
Directorate and its subsequent release. Clarifications, wherever necessary have been
included in the'Notes to Accounts' section of the Annual Report. Furthermore, a Report
issued by Statutory Auditors pursuant to the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial
Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 is attached and is self-
explanatory.

Secretarial Audit Report
In terms of Section 204 of the Act, the Board of Directors had appointed M/ s Ritu kathuria and
Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, to undertake seoetarial audit of &e Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2O21. Tlte report of M/s Ritu Kathuria and Associates,
Practicing Company Secretary in prerribed Form MR-3 shall be subsequently
Director's ReporL 0
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Maintenance of cost records

Your Company is not required to maintain cost records in terms of Section 148(1) of the Act

RISKMANAGEMENT

Your Company has set up a strong operating franework and developed robust credit apptaisal
policies to evaluate income and repayment capabilities of customers. The company continues
to practice prudence in terms of its lending practices and uses effective checks and balances to
mitigate risk exposue. This indudes a credit history check from credit bureau data, an
employment, business and residence check tfuough personal discussions, and in-house legal,
technical and fraud checks in addition to agency verifications.

The Company has an lnternal control system, comm€rrsurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations.

Company's Risk Management framework provides the mechanism for risk assessment and
mitigation. The Board has delegated responsibility of overseeing Risk Management framework
to the Risk Management Committee. The Risk Management Conmittee (RMC) of your
Company was comprised of Mr Rahul Kumar Pandey, Independent Director, Mr Shrenik
Shah, Independent Director, Mr. Ahrl Mehta, Independent Director and Mr. Vipin fain , MD
and CEo designate of the Company as on March 31 , 2021 . The Risk Managerrent corunittee is
responsible for reviewing the risk associated with the business of the company, its root causes
and the efficacy of the measures taken to mitigate the same, determining implications on
quality and review of retums and reports to NHB pertaining to the risk monitoring function.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Internal Audit Departnent monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequary of intemal
control system in the Companp its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures
and policies at all locatioru of the Company.

Further based on the report of intemal audit functiory process owners undertake corrective
action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. significant audit
observatioru and recommendations along with corrective actions thereon are presented to the
Audit Committee of the Board.

To maintain its o$ectivity and independmce, the Intemal Audit function reports to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and explanations
obtained by us, and based on the report(s) of statutory Auditors and submission(s) by lntemal
Auditors of the Company for the financial year under review, the Directors are oI the view that
the intemal financial controls with
adequate and operating efficiently.

reference to the financial statements of the Company were

$
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WHISTLE BLOWER POUCY

Your Company has adopted a whistle Blower Policy and established a mechanism for
Directors and Employees to rq)ort concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected
fraud, or violation of code of conduct. The mechanism also provides for adequate safeguard
against the victimisation of employees who avail the mechanism and allows direct access to
the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. The whistle blower poficy is

the Company at
2418-75391731,67.Dd,t.

available on the website of
htas: / /arthfc.com/uolo ad / ouicklink / quikpdfl 0-1 0-

In terms of section 135 of the Act, the Board of Directors adopted a 'CSR policy' which helps
towards contribution and furtherance of your Company's objective to create value in the
society and community in which it operates, through its services, conduct and initiatives, so as
to promote sustained growth for the society and community, in fulfilment of its role as a
socially responsible corporate citizen-

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

The CSR Policy of the Company inter-alia indicates the CSR activities t}at can be undertaken
by the Company and defines the roles and responsibilities of the Boatd of Directors and CSR
Committee in implementing and monitoring CSR projects identified and supported by the
Company. The Annual report on CSR is given as Annexure B. The CSR Poliry of the Company
IS available on the website of the Company at
httos:/ / arthfc.com upload/ouicklinkpdf / o Ddml{8- 201.9 -1.5646477 08.odt.

out related party dirlosures. The Company's Policy on dealing with related party
transactions, as approved by the Board is available on website of the Company at
httDs: / / arthfc com/uoload /ouicklink f/ouikodtz74!2020-7585296529 Ptlf.

During the Financial Year under review the Company has contributed an amount aggegating
to Rs 32,70'No/- @upees Thirty Two takhs and seventy Thousand onryy to.,iial csn
activities for financial year 202G27.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

considering the nature of industry in which the Company operates, transactions with related
parties of the Conpany are in the ordina{F course of business which are also on arm,s length
basis. The particulars of contracts or arrangerrents with related parties as referred in section
188(1) of the Act is attached to this Report in prescribed form AoC - 2 as Aanenne c.

Your Directors draw attention of the members to Note 35 of the financial statement which sets

GI,JIDELINES ON CORPC}RATE GOVERNANCE

In order to adopt best practices and greater transparency in the operations of the Company
and in compliance with the Directions issued by Reserve Bank of India i.e. "The Master Direction

- Housing Finance (Reserve Bank) D

A
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Board of Directors of the Company approved and adopted the "Internal Guidelines on
corporate Govemance". The Guidelines are on Corporate Govemance are available on the
website of the Company at httos:/ /arthfc.com/upload / ouicklinkodf /ouikpdB0{}202G
1585587291.pdf.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

In terms of section 186(11) of the Act read with Companies (Meetings of Board and its powers)
Rules, 2014 the Company being a housing finance comp.rny registered with NFIB, the
Company is exempt from complying the provisioru of section 186 in respect of loans made,
guarantees given or securities provided by the Company. Further, details oI the investments
made by the Company please refer Note 7 of the standalone (audited) financial statements of
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN AND SCHEME

Your Company believes that its success and ability to achieve objectives is largely determined
by the quality of its workforce and recognises that not only good employ'ment opportunities
but also additional motivating mechanisns are needed to incentivise 

"-ptoy*r "rra 
aigr,iog

their interest with the interest of the Company. ln recognition or me saia oujecuvi tne
Company adopted and implemented AAIIF Employee stock option plan zolz (ri(]lp 2olz-)
pursuant to the approval of the shareholder& at their meeting held on May 29,2017 and
Employee stock option Plan 2019 ("ESCP 2o1y') pursuant to the approval of shareholders, at
their meeting held on May 9, 2019.

Below is the snmmary regarding ESOP 2017 &Ef{)p 2019 as on March 31, 2021.

Approved ESOP
Pool 25,00,0m 25,00,0m

2017 m77 2018 m19
50,00,000 50,00,000

Granted 18,00,000 3,05,m0 29,88,000 3,94,000 54,87.W 26,37,W

Lapced (during the
gant period) 74,75,Ufi 219,ffi x,465n 2,E750o 43,225tr 79,77,W

Net Grant 3,25,W0 85,500 6,4t,W 1,12J00 11,64,5m 7,735N

Vested 5,70,W 99,300 4,36,W 0 7-t,06,2!n 4,01"3O0

Lapsed (during the
vested period) 4,40,000 41,1m 3,33,400 0 8,14500 2,@,fio

ryet Vestings 1,30,000 s8,2m 1,m^500 0 2,97,7ffi 7,N,7ffi

Exercised 0 0 0 0

Yet to be vesEd 1.95,000 27,3tX 5,38,000 77,25,@ 8,7zffi s,7zw

A
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DISCLOSURE I,'NDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE
WoRKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBTTION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2m3

The Company has formed a robust Anti-Sexual Harassment Poliry ('PolicyJ in line with the
requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Preventio4 Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013. Intemal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set-up to redress
complaints received regarding sexual harassm€nt. The Policy on Sexual Harassment of the
Company is available on the website of the Company at
https://arthfc.com/ upload / euicklinkodf / ouikod f27 -0T2020-1585296807.o df.

The ICC of your Company comprises of following Members as on March 31, 2021:

Name of Director - Member Designation

Ms. Ritika Bhatia Whole-time Director & Company
Secretary

Ms. Mamta Bhardwaj Sr. Manager - HR
Ms. Vinkeet Kaur Deputy Manager - FIR
Mr. Vishwanath Bahuguna Manager I*gal
Dr Rajat Mitra On behalf of Swanchetan Society for

Mental Health

No cases of sexual harassment have been reported nor investigated by the ICC during the year
under review.

ENERGY CONSERVATIOry TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, AND FOREIGN
E(CHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS ORTRIBI,'NALS

since the Company provides Home Loans, most of the information as required under section
1M(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts of Companies)
Rules, 2014, is not applicable. However, the information, as applicable, has been given
in Annexute - D and forms part of this report.

FOREIGN HCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company has not eamed any foreign exchange during the year under review. Further
the amount of foreign exchange outgo is given below:

During the year under review, Provisional Attachment orders were issued by ED, attaching
the bank accounts and fixed deposits of the Company having a balance of Rs. 5i53.59 Lacs. The

L
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Company had subsequently, filed a petition in Honorable Delhi High court for release of
these funds. Accordingly, the Honourable Delhi High court vide order dated June 10,2020
gave liberty to the Company to operate its bank accounts mentioned in the impunged
provisional attachment order subject to the amount attached by the ED.

Further, vide another order of the Honourable Delhi High Court, dated september 25, 2020, an
amount of Rs 4285.33 Lacs was released by the bank, in favour of National Housing Bank
(NHB) towards settlement of Ioan availed by the Company. As on the close of the Lrrent
financial year an amount of Rs. 9ZB.26I_acs stands attached Ly the ED.

CONFIRMATION ON FRAIJD, MISFEASANCE OR ANY IRREGI,'LARITY IN THE
COMPANY

There were no instances of fraud, misfeasance or irregularity detected and reported in the
Company during the year under review other than in tlie normal course of business.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of our knowledge^and belief and according to the information and expranations
obtained by us, pursuant to Section 134 of the Comp'anies Act,2073, the Directors hereby
confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the Arurual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have be",.
, . f3lloled along with proper explanation relating to materiat departries;b) they have selected such 

lccounting poticres ind applied th&r consistently and made
ludgments and estimates that are reasonabre and pruient so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company at the end oi the rina.u"r y"""r ,"a or *r" pr"n, 

""aIoss of the Company for that period;
c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding 'rr," 
"r*o or t 

"_ Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and otfrer irre=gufaritils;d) they have prepared the Armual Accounts Jn a going concern basis; ande) the Directors have devised proper systems to dsurJ compliance with the provisions of alrapplicable laws while ensuring that such systems were adfouate and opera'ting eifectivery.

APPRECIATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors take this opportunity to express treir sincere gratitude to the customers of theCompany for their confidence and pahonage; to the shareholders, regulatory bodies, bankersand rating agencies for their ,nyielding support and guidance; and tJ the emproyees for theircommitmenb hard work and zeal during the year.
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By order of the Board of Directors

For ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Kumar Pandey
Chairperson
DIN:fi)250437

Date: May 11, 2021
Place Gurugram

(
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Annerure - A

Annual Return as on the Financ Year end on March ,2021
ursusnt to seetion 92(31 of the Co nles Ac t 2013 and ru le 12 ) of the

Conma nies (Mana and Ailministration) Rules,2014l

ISTRATI AND DETAILS:

CIN u65999DL2m3PLC255432

ll. Date I 76,2013
u1. Name of the Com ART Finance Limited
tv Category / Sub{ategory of the

Com
Housing Finance Company

Address of the Registered office
and contact details New Delhi-110034

vt. Whether listed No
Name, Address and Contact details
of Registrar and Transfer Agm! i{

vlr. Link Intime India Private Limited
Address: C-107, 247 Park, LBS Marg
Vikhroli (WesQ, Mumbai- {X}083.
Contact Person: Mr Vishwas Attavar
Tet +91 2.497g544p
Fax +91 22 491ffi
Errail: vishwas.attavar@linkintime.co.in

I.

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS OFTHE COMPATIY

AII the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total tumover of the company: -

Code of the
servrce

7o to total tumover of
the company

Providing Housing Loans &
Mortgage

6i4920 10(P/o

III.PARTI CULARS OFHOLDING,s AND

1

COMPANIES

Applicable
Section

Private Limid

A 0

Sr.
No.

Name And Address Of
The Company

CIN/GLN Holding/
Subsidiary

o/o ol
shares
held
100.00 2(46)

2. ART Distribution (I)
Private Limited

U5N {DL2O15PTC
2839n

Subsidiary 100.00 2$4$)
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Form No. MGT-9

, 1M, Best Sky Tower, Netafi Subhash place,

Sr. Name and Description of
No. main products / services

I i I I /Acqrv.irra

11. lARrBusiness& @i i Consumer Finarrce I *zxz I

T



SHARE HOLDING PAI'IERN (EOUTry SHARE CAPTTAL BREAI(UP AS PERCENTAGEry.
OF TOTAL EOUITY)

i. Category-wise Sharc Holiling

No, of Shares held at the
year

No. of Shares
year

at the end

A- homoter

a) Individual/
HUT

b) Central
Govt

c) State
Govt(s)

d) Bodies
Corp

38,50.00.m0* 38,50,m,000 100 38.50.00.000 38.50.00.000 1m

e) Banks/ FI
0 lrny Other

2) Forei6n 0.00 0.00

g) NRIr
Individuals

0.00 0.m

h) Other-
Individuals

0_00 0.m

i) Bodies Corp. 0.00 0-m
j) Banks/ FI 0.00 0.m
k) Any
Other....

0.00 0.00

Total Promoter
Shareholding
(A)=(AXI)+
(AX2)

38,50,00,000 38J0,00,000 100 38, ,00.000 38J0,00,000 100

B. Public
Shareholdin

1 . Imtitutions 0.00 0.00
a) Mutual

funds
0.00 0.00

b) Banks/ FI 0.00 0.00

I

A
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Category of
Shar€hold€r6 Chant

e

during
the
year

Demat Physical Total Demat Phy Total
sical

%d
Total

Slures

%of
Total

Sharcs

1) Irdiar

38JO,00100 3,8J0,O0r00 lm 38J0p0rm 3850,00100 lm

Sub-tdal
{AX2)r

0.00



c) Cenkal
Gowt

0.00 0.00

d) State
Govt(s)

0.00 0.00

e) VentEre
Capital
Funds

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

s) FIIS 0.00 0.00
h) Foreign

Ventule
Capital
Funds

0.00 0.00

i) Others
(specify)

Sub+otal (B)(1)

2 Non
Institutions

0.00

0.00

0.m

0.m
0.00

a) Bodies
Corp.

(i) Indian
{ii) Overseas

0.00 0.00

b) Individnals

(i) Individual
shareholderg
holding
nominal share
capital up to
Rs l lakh
(ii) Individrd
shareholders
holding
nornillrl sharc
capital in
excegs of Rs 1

lath

0.m 0.00

c) Others
(Specify)

0.00 0.00

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(BX1)+
(BX2)

-

I

-

I
0

- -

0

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRg &
ADRs

0.00 0.00

q

A
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f) Insurance
Companies

0.m

0 0

Grand Tdal
(A+B+C)

1 100 3850,m,0o0 38"50,mrm r00



* The Compatty is the uholly owwil subsiiliary of ART Busiaess I Consumer Eiaaace (Inilia)
Pioate Limiteil (ABCE) anil out of the total shareholiling of 38,50,00,0N hekl W ABCE, thc
following sharcs are reprcsenteil by the follouing N ominees on behalf of ABCE:

7. Raakhe Kapoor Tanilon represeating 95 shanes on behalf ol ABCE
2. Roshini Kapoor represmtitrg 1 shane on behaf of ABCF
3. Rajesh Gandhi representing 7 share on behalf of ABCE
tL Varun Kopur rcpresenting 7 share on beha[ of ABCF
5. Alkesh Tandon represetting 1 shale on behaff o/ ABCF
6. Railha Kapoor Khanna reprcsenting 1 shorc on behalf ol ABCE

ii. ShatehoWing of Promoterc

Sr.
No Shareholdels Name Shareholding at the

beghning of the year
Shareholding at the end of the

year

No- of
Shar€s

%ot
total

Shares

of the
comP
any

%6
ShaEs
Pledge

d,/
encumb
€red to

total
shares

No. of
Shar€s

%of
total

Shares
of tre
comP
any

%of
Slrares
roged

€ncumbe
r€d ro
bfal

sfrar€s

change
in share
holding
during

the year

1 ART Business & Consumer Finance
(India) Private Limited (ABCF)

38,50,00,000 r00 38,s0,00,000 100

2. Raakhe Kapoor Tandon (Nominee
Shareholder representing 95 Shares
on behalf of ABCF)

0 0

3. Radha Kapoor (Nominee
Shareholder representing 1 share on
behalf of ABCF )

0 0

4. Alkesh Tandon (Nominee
Shareholder represerrting 1 share on
behalf of ABCF )

0 0

5 Roshini Kapoor (Nominee
Shareholder representing 1 share on
behalf of ABCF )

0 0

6. Varum Kapoor (Nominee
Sharcholder representing 1 share on
behalf of ABCF )

0 0

7 Rai:sh Gandhi (Nominee
Shareholder representing 1 share on
behalf of ABCF )

0 0

Total 38J0,00,000 100 38J0,00,000 100

I

A
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the beginning of lhe year

1ll.

wise Incease/
in Shareholdiag

the
the End of the year 38,50,m,000

Fq Each of the Directcs atrd
KMP
At the beginning of the vear

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying {re reasons for
increase/ decrease (e.g. a[otment /
tansfer / bonusl {tr1!_"q",tll

100 38.50.m,000

Shareholdht at the beginning of
the year

% of totat shne6
of the comPary

fiet Finance (India) Pioate
ABCF, the follounng shares

Change in Ptomoterc' Shareholilitrg (plcase specify, if there is to change)

Shareholding at
the

the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding during the year

38,50,00,000* 100 38,50.m,000

* The Company is the ukolly ouned subsidiary of ART Busiruss €t Consa
Limited (ABCF) tnil out of the total shareholding of 38,50/n,000 held by
are reprcsented by Llu following Noninees on behalf of ABCF:

7. Raaklu Kopor Tanilon regesenting gS share; on fuhatf of ABCE
2. Roshini Kapoor reprexnting-L shnre on behalf of ABCF
3. Rajesh Ganilhi representing l share on behalf of ABCF
4. Varun Kapur reyesenting 7 share oa fuhnlf of ABCF
5. Alkesh Tanilon reyexnting 1 share on behalf of ABCF
6. Radla Kapoor Khanna rcprexnting 7 share on fuhalf of ABCF

io. shareholding Pattefl of to? te, shateholiler (othq thanDhectorc, prornoters and
Holden of GDRs and ADRs):

(o) Sharcholding ol Directors and Key Matagerial persontcl:

Cumulative Shareholding during
the year

No. of shares % of total shares
of the compary

A

Name Particulars Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumnlative Shareholding
during the year

For Each of the Top 10 Shar€holdec No. of
shares

Pz" or totar
Lhaes of the
l"o-r.o"

No. oI
shares

of totd
of the

I

At the End of dle vear

DIRECTOR'S REPORT 202&21

% of totd Ehares of the
comPany

1m

No. of shares

100

No. of
shares

4 {.l



Indebtedness of the Company induding interest outstanding/accmed but not due for paymmt:
(Amount in Rs lacs)

vI. of Directors and Kev Managerial Personnel

tion to ns Director, Whole-time Directors and,/or Mal.

Particulars Secured Loans
excluding deposis

Unsecued tpans Deposits Total IndebHness

Indebtedness at the
beginning of Arc finarrcial
year

i) Principal Amount 18,Em-17 18,8cn.77

ii) InErest due but not paid

iii) lnErcst accrued but not
due

Total (i+iiriii) 18,E00.17 78,W_17
Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year

Addition

- Reduction 153{v 85 15307.8s

Net Change (-)1s3o7.8s (-)15307.85

Indebtedness at the end of
the financial year

i) Principal Amount 3492.32

ii) InErest due but not paid

iii) Inbrcst accrued but not
due

Toral (i+ii+iii) 3497i2 u9L32

,t49er

Particulars of
Remuneration

Gross salary
(a) Safary as

Per
provisions
contained in
section 111)
of the
Income-lax
Act, 1961

(b) Value of
perquisites ds
17(2) Income-

26,27,W 30,36,(m 1,60,51,m0

Name of MDy'ATID/ Manager

1,03,94,W

Total
Amount

Arvind Hali Manish Singh Ritika Bhatia

tax 1961

15,93824
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U

15,E3,824

L

V. Indebtedness

3492.32

. (Amountin Rs)

F_---f---|

I



(c)Mitsin
lieu of salary
qlrder section
17(3) Income-
tar Act, 1961

C-ornrniqaion
- aso/o ot
profit
- others,
cpecify...
Others, please
gpecifv

Number of
Stock ryions

ii. Renuneratioa Keu Manasei a I P ers onnel thar Directors
(Amount in Rs)

Particulars of Remuleration Key Marag€rial Personnel

Vipin fain
Chief

Financial
Officer

Gncss salary

v,8,m 45,m,000 92,U,W

(b) Value of perquisims u/ s17Q)
lncome-to( AcL 1l)6l
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
se€tion 17(3) Income.tax Act 1 1

39,186
39,786

SL
tro.

Ritika Sati,
Company
Secretary*

Pankai lain,
chid

Financial
Officer'

Total

1

)

L

Stock Option

DIRECTOTS REPORT 202L21

I

Sweat Equity

42,74324 3036,0m 7,76.44,824Total (A)

Ceiling as pr
the Act

"Mr Arvind Roshan Hali was having 11,00,000 ESOPs under ESOP Scheme 2017 and was
ganted 100,000 equity shares urder AHFL FSOP Scheme 2019
*Ms Ritika Bhatia was having 65,000 ESOPs under ESOP Scheme 2017 and was granted 25,000
options under AHFL ESOP Scheme 2019

"Mr. Manish Singh was having 3,(X),000 ESOPs under ESOP Scheme 2017 and was granted
2fi)000 options under AHFL ESOP Scheme 2019

(a) Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the Incorne.tax AcL 3036,0m

1967



3.

1.

5.

6.

Sweat Equitv

Commission
- as % of profit
- ofhers, specify...

Others, ptease speci{v

45,00,0m
Total 3036,0@ t7i7,t6 52,53,|U

Stock@ion
*Mr Pankai ]ain was having 1,5Q000 ESOPs under ESOP Scheme 2017 and was granted
1,50,0ffi options under AHFL ESOP Scheme 2019

"Ms Ritika Sati was having 65,000 ESOPs under ESOP Scheme Z)17 and was granted 25,000
options under AHFL ESOP Scheme 2019
-Mr. Pankaj Jain resigned from the post of CFO w .e.l 37d May, 2O20

iii. Remuneration to Directors Olher Than MD /Tvlanager /\tTD
(Amount in Rs)

* As per Sub-section (5) of the Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
*Lt Gen (Retd) Dr Sukhraj Pal Kochhar has resigned from the position of independent director
w.e.f May 2na 2020

" Mr. Brijesh Gupta has resigned from the position of Independent Director w.e.f u

Particulars of
Remuneaation

Total
Amount

Lt Gen
(Retd) Dr

Sukhraj Pal
Kochhar

(Independe
nt

Director)*

Mr Brijesh
Kumar
Gupta

(lndepende
nt

Director)r

Mr. Ah,
Mehta
(Indepen
dent
Director)

Mr- Rahul
Parudey

(Indepen
dent

Direcbr)

Mr. Stuenik
Shah

(lndepende
nt Drector)

Independent Directors
Fee for attendint board

and comurittee Meetings
'Commiseion
'Others, please specify

44,0m 5,67,m 5,23,000 4,80,000 17,45,ffi

Total (1) 44,m 1,31,000 5,67,W s23,0@ 4,80,000 77A,,W
Non-Executive Directors
'Fee for attending board

committee meetings
'Commiseion
'Others, please specify
(Conveyance Charges)
Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2) M,W 131,000 5,67,m 5,2i,m 4.80,000 77,45,ffi
Overall Ceiling as per
lhe A.t

Not exceeding Rupees One Lakh per Dtector
per Meeting of Board or Committee thereof

rI
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Vll.Penalties / PunishmenU Compounding of Offences:

Type

Penalty'

Conpounding

Punishment

*During the year under review, National
Company on account of non<ompliance.

B. Directors

C. Other Officers In Default

Housing Bank (NHB) imposed penalty on the
The details are as below:

qr

Section of
the
Conpanies
Act

Details of Penalty/
Purishment/
Compqundirg fees
imposed

Authority
[RD/
NCLV
CoErtl

Appeal made. If
any (Bive details)

A.

Punishment

Date of Letter Amount of Penalty liance
Aqrn21,mn Rs. 155,000/- (One Iakh

Fifty-Five Thousand Only)
plus applicable GST @ 18%

Para 2(1) (zc) of the FtrC
(NFIB) Directions 2010 and

Circular 55
4pr121,,2020 Rs. 5,000/- (Five Thousand

Only) plus applicable GST
@

18%

Policy Circular 83

}*{ay26,2O20 Rs. 1,000/- (One Thousand
OnIy) plus applicable GST
@
"18%

P x agr aph 44(2)(ii) of the
Housing.Finance
Companies

Directions, 2010
September
76,2020

25,000/-(twmty Five
Thousand Only) plus
applicable GST @18%

Contravention of Para 3(c)
of FIFCs- Approval of
Acquisition or Transfet of
Control (N[IB) Directions,
2016

A
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Brief
description

I PerrItY I

I Punishment I

Compounding

Penalty

I Conpolmdin8 
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Annexure B
Annual report on CSR activities

[Pursuant to daux (o) of sub-xction (3) of xction 134 of the Act ond rulc 9 of the Compaies
(Corporate Social Resptsibility) Auendment Rules, 2U1l

1. A brid outline on CSR Policy of the Compary+

CSR shall be carried out by the Company as per its CSR policy within the broad rope laid
down in Schedule VII to the Act as projects /programmes/activities, excluding activities in its
normal course of business. CSR activities shall be caried out by the Corrpany by its own
intemal CSR team The Company shall speci{y a suitable monitoring and reporting mechanism.

2- The of the CSR Committee:

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR comnrittee, CSR
Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are
dirlosed on the website of the company.

: Not Applicable

{. pstails of Impact assessment of CSR projects
carried out in pursuance of zub-.rule (3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility PoUcy)
Rules, 2014, if applicable.

: Not Applicable

!. pgrails of the amount available for set off in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014
and amount required for set off for the financial year,

: Not Applicable

if an

q

sl.
No.

Name of Director Designatiory'
Nature of
Directorship

Number of
meetings of
CSR Committee
held during the
year

Number of
meetings of CSR
Committee
attended dwing
the year

Mr. Rahul Kumar
Pandey

lndependent
Director

2. Mr. AtuI Mehta lndependent
Director

3 Mr. Shrenik Shah Independent
Director

4 Ms. Ritika Bhatia Whole
Director
Company
Secretary

Time
and

One (1) One (1)

sI.
No.

Financial Year Amount available for set-off
from preceding financial years
(in Rs)

Amount required to be set off
for the financial year, if any

NIL

A

1.



6. Average net profit of the company as per section
13s(s)

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company
as per section 135(5)
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR proiects or
progriunmes or activities of the previous financid
years.
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial
year, if any
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year
(7a+7V7c).

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial
year:

: Rs. 163.52 lakhs

:Rs 32.69 Lakhs

:NIL

Xs 32.69 talhs

I'l
L

DIRECTOR'S REPORT 2020.21

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as

Amount transferred to any fund specified
under Schedule VII as per second proviso

Total
Amounl
Spent for the
Financial
Year.
(in Rs.) Amount. Date of

transfer.
Name of the

Fund
Amount. Date of

transfer.
Nil Nit Nil Nil Nil



(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projecte for the financiar year: NONE

(c) Details of CSR amount sPent against other than ongoing projecte for the financial year: None

A

AmountSr.
o

Name of
the Project

Item
from the

liet of
activities

in
Schedule

VII to
the Act.

Local
area

(Yes/t,lo).

Locatlon of the
Itoject

Proiect
duration.

for the
proiect
(in Rs.).

pent in

ear (in
Re).

Amount

to
Unepent

csR
Account
for the

proiect ae

Per
Sectlon

13s(5) (rn
Ra.

Mode of
Implementa

tion -
Direct

(Ye{t{o).

Mode of
Implementation -

Through
Implementing

Agency

te. District Name

Number
Registra

NIL

IETIIIIIEI IEI
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(1) (2\ (3) (4) (s) (8)
sl.
No

Name of the Project Item from
the

liet of
activitiee

in Schedule
VII to the

Act.

(Yey'f.{o).

Local
area

Location of the
Project

Amount
spent for the
project (in
RsJ.

Mode of
Implementa

tion -
Direct

[e{r.{o).

Through
Mode of

Agency

State. District. Name CSR
Registration
Number

1 (ii)
1 (i)
3 (i)

4 (ii)

Z

r r

M9
A
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(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessrnent, if applicable

($ Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+&+8d+8e)

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any NIL

9 (a) Detafu of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding tfuee financial years: NIL

: NIL
Not Applicable

sl.
No

Particular Amount (in Rs.)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per
section 1

32,69,M

(n) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 32,70,W0

(iii) amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]Excess 1000

(i") arising out of the CSR projecb or progr.unmes or
activities of the previous financial years, if any

Surplus Nit

(") le for set off in succeeding financial yearsAmount availab
(iii)-(lv)l

The Company
does not intend
to carry forward
the amount {or
set off-

(1) (2t (3) (4) (s)

SI.
No

Preceding
Financial

Year.

Amount
transferred
to
Unspent
CSR
Account
under
section I35
(6)
in Rs.

Amount
spent
in the
reporting
Financial
Year
(in Rs.).

Amount transfered to any
fund specified under
Schedule YII as per
section 135(6), if any.

Amount
remaining
to be spent
in
succeeding
financial
years. (in
Rs.)

Name
of the
Fund

NIL

Amount
(in Rs).

Date of
transfer.

A
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the firnncial year for ongoing proiects of the
preceding financial year(s): NIL

10. Derail< relating to the asset
so created or acquired through GR spent in the financial year
(acset-wise details). NONE

a) Date of creation or acquisition of the
capital asset(s).

b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or
acquisition of capital Asseu

c) Detailc of the entity or public
authority or beneficiary under whose
name such capital asset is registered,
their address etc.

d) Details ofthe capital asset(s) created or
acquired (induding complete address
and Iocation of the capital asset).

9v

(3) (4) (s) (6) (n (8) (e)

SI

N
o

Proiec
t

ID.

Na
me
of
the
P.oi
ect.

Financial
Year in
which
the
proiect
waE
commenc
ed-

Proie
ct

durat
ion-

Total
amount

allocated
for the
proiect
(in Rs.).

Amou
nt

sp€nt
on the
proiect

in
the

reporti
n8

Financ
id

Year
(in
Rs

Cumula
tive

amount
sPent
at the
end of

r€portin
s

Financi
aI

Year.
(in Rs.)

Status of
the

Proiect -
Complet

ed
/Ongoing

ML

HE

A



11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the
average net profit as per section 135(5). - NIL

Kumar Pandey
Chairperson
DIN:ffi250437

Date: May 11, 2021
Place Gurugram

A
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Form for dirlosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
Company with rel,ated parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 1gg of the
Companies Ac! 2013 induding certain arm's length transactions under third proviso
thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrengemerrts or transactions not at arrn's length basis:

There were no contracts or arrangefrents or transactions entered during the year
ended March 31, 2021 which were not at arrr,s length basis.

2 Details of material conlracts or arangement or transactions at arm,s length basis:
NIL

Annexure - C
FORMNO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to dause @) of zub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of Ere
Companies (Accounb) Rules, 2013)

In crores

Kumar Pandey
Chairperson
DIN:fi)25{X37

Date:May11,2lJf27
Place Gurugram

A

Narne
of the
Relate
d Paty

Na
tur
e
of
Rel
ati
on
shi

Nature of
Contract/
Arrangem
eny
transaction

Duration
of
Contract/
Arange
meny
transacti
on

Total
Value of
Contract/
Arrange
men/
Transacti
on

Salient
Terms of
Contract/
Arrangem
e',.v
transaction

Date of
Approv
al by the
Board

Amount
paid as
advance,
if *y
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Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

The information in Part A and B, pertaining to conversation of enbrgy and technology

1|sorptiol are not applicable to ART Housing Firunce (India) riorit a, as it iia
Housing Loan provider. However, the Company requires energy for its operations
and every endeavour has been made to ensure the optimal uL of eneriy, avoid
wastage and conserve energy as far as possible.

The 
-Company 

continuously evaluates global innovation and technology as a
benchmark and wherever required, enter into arangements to avail the latest
technology hends and practices.

Foreien Exchange Earnings and Outgg.

The Company has not eamed any foreign exchange however the amount of foreign
exchange outgo is given below:

Anneture - D
INFORMATION RELATED TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AND FOREIGN EXCIIANGE
EARNING AND OUTGO FORMING PART OF DIRECTORS' REPORT IN
TERMS Or SECTION 1il4(3)(m) OF THE COMPANTES ACT, 2Ol3 READ I,ITTH
RULE (E)(3) OF THE COMPANTES (ACCOT.TNTS) RT.JLES, 2Or4

Earnings: NIL
Outgo: Rs. 0.01 crores

A
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        Ritu Kathuria & Associates 
                      Company Secretaries 
 

 
Office Add:- J-94, Kirti Nagar , New Delhi – 110015. 
M(9717220606), email id: csritukathuria@gmail.com 

PAN: BMGPK6327R 
GSTIN: 07BMGPK6327R1ZE 

Page 1 of 4 Art Housing Finance (India) Limited 
Secretarial Audit Report 

For F.Y. ended 31st March, 2021 
 

Form No. MR-3 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2021 
 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 
 
The Members, 
ART HOUSING FINANCE (INDIA) LIMITED, 
(U65999DL2013PLC255432) 
107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place,  
Pitampura New Delhi North West DL 110034. 
 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by Art Housing Finance (India) Limited, (“hereinafter 
called the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 
thereon. 
 
We report that: 
  

a) Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.  
 

b) We have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We have 
carried out audit by way of physical inspection as well as relying on documents shared 
electronically, where physical access was not possible on account of lockdown due to COVID-19. 
We believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 
 

c) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statements of the 
Company.   
 

d) Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliances of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  
 

e) The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
Secretarial standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the 
verification of procedures on test basis. Further, compliance of The National Housing Bank Act, 
1987 and The Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010 is limited to verification of 
filing of forms and returns thereunder. 
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f) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 

 
Based on our verification of the Company books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, 
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We 
hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on  March 31, 2021 (“Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism 
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021, according to the 
provisions of:  
 

i.   The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder; 
 

Based on the information and explanation provided, the Company had no 
transactions/events/actions during the period covered under the Audit requiring the 
compliance of the provisions of :  
 

i.    The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder 
 

ii.   The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;  
 

iii.    Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings;  

 
iv.    The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):  
 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015;  
 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;  

 
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits) 

Regulations, 2014;  
 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008;  
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f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993;  
 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2009;  
 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;  
 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;  

 
Further, as represented by the Management, following are some of the laws which are specifically 
applicable to the company, viz.:- 
 

i. National Housing Bank Act, 1987. 
ii. Housing Finance Companies (“NHB”) Directions 2010 and other applicable rules, 

regulations and guidelines made thereunder. 
iii. Housing Finance Companies – Approval of Acquisition or Transfer of Control (NHB) 

Directions, 2016. 
 
We have also examined the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India (“Secretarial Standards”) with respect to Board Meetings and General 
Meetings. 
 
During the period under review and as per the explanations and clarifications given to us and the 
representations made by the Management, the Company has generally complied with the 
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above, to the extent 
applicable.  
 
During the audit period, National Housing Bank (NHB) levied following penalties: 
1. INR 1,55,000 plus applicable taxes for non-compliance with the provisions of Para 2(1)(zc) of 

the HFC (NHB) Directions 2010 and Policy Circular 55 and INR 5,000 plus applicable taxes 
on account of non-compliance of policy circular 83. 

2. INR 1,000 plus applicable taxes Non-compliance with the provisions of paragraph 44(2)(ii) of 
the HFCs (NHB) Directions, 2010. 

3. INR 25,000 plus applicable taxes for Contravention of Para 3(c) of HFCs- Approval of 
Acquisition or Transfer of Control (NHB) Directions, 2016. 
 

We further report that 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of 
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and notes on 
agenda were sent within the permissible time limits and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 
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Majority decision is carried through are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. We 
understand that there were no dissenting members’ views requiring to be captured in minutes. 
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
We further report that during the audit period, there were following instances of: 
 

a. The Company has passed Special Resolution under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 to borrow a sum equivalent to 750 Crores (Rupees Seven Hundred Fifty Crores), 
over and above the aggregate, for the time being, of the paid-up share capital, free reserves 
and securities premium of the Company.   

 
b. The Bank accounts and Fixed Deposits of the Company were attached by The Enforcement 

Directorate (“ED”) amounting to INR 51 Crores vide Provisional Attachment Order (“PAO”) 
05thMay, 2020 and 19th May, 2020. However, the Company had filed petition in The Delhi 
High Court (“HC”) for de freezing of accounts and HC ordered the Company to maintain 
only minimum balance of amount attached with the PAO and allowed the Company to 
operate the other bank accounts in accordance with their contractual obligations. Now, as 
on date all bank accounts of the Company are de-freezed, however keeping the balance of 
INR 0.35 Crores under lien of the ED. Further, the Company is in process to release the 
same with ED Adjudicating Authority.  

 
c. Snap Inspection was conducted by National Housing Bank (NHB) on the Company in the 

month of May and June 2020.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Date: 11/05/2021 
Place: Delhi 

For Ritu Kathuria & Associates 
(Company Secretaries) 

 
 
 
 

Ritu Khurana 
CP No. 13101. 
M. No. F8119 
UDIN: F008119C000278180 
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